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Vice Chairman O. Larsen opens the hearing on SB 2313.  
 
Madam Chair Lee introduces SB 2313, gives a brief description, and proposed an 
amendment that would remove the cabinet agencies on page 2 which would be the 
Department of Human Services, Department of Health, Corrections, and Indian Affairs. 
This would parallel the new makeup of the Olmstead Commission permitting all of 
these parties to provide input on discussion points but not being decision makers, the 
governor or his designee would preside and the commission would meet quarterly, 
beginning on line 20; the responsibilities of the commission are listed and include 
coordinating leadership and developing strategies to address gaps and to provide for 
a full continuum of care. Cooperation between public and private service providers 
developing a vision for how children are served without consideration of prior 
engagement with juvenile services and involving consumers and providers on 
advisory committees is required.   
 
(3:21) Senator Hogan: Are we replacing the behavioral health task force or the behavioral 
health planning council? 
 
Madam Chair Lee: It is taskforce.  
 
Senator Hogan: Do any other states have this model? 
 
Madam Chair Lee: I can’t answer that but I assume the people behind me to testify would 
have more information on that.  
 
(04:40-07:47) Chris Jones, Executive Director of the Department of Human Services. 
Testifying in favor of SB 2313. Testimony is as follows.  
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Chris Jones: How does the child enter a complex behavioral health system. When they 
enter either the cps or juvenile court system.  When you look at the bill its really seen at it 
being more on the strategic focus and letting the leaders of the state to drive the vision of 
moving this forward. I think there is a difference and strategy between operations, we are not 
excluding cps and juvenile services but the function is not a part of it. You almost have to 
pretend you’re a child entering the system and ask yourself how does this work. Ensuring 
that this isn’t just an agency look at how we look at kids I feel this could have great outcomes 
over the years.  
 
Senator Hogan: I think of the behavioral health working group in West Fargo. How do you 
see this group interfacing with local groups like that?  
 
Chris Jones: I think that’s up to how the committee is formed. Everyone wants to fix the 
behavioral health system but don’t know how to do it. This commission or taskforce would 
say how to do it and provide the framework. 
 
Madam Chair Lee: This is intended to be strategy and not operations.  
 
(10:54-18:16) Pam Sagness Director of the Behavioral Health Division. Testifying in 
favor of SB 2313. Pam Sagness draws a diagram on the board to show the committee 
how certain services don’t reach certain population and how you would have to go 
through a certain service or be a part of a certain population to receive treatment. 
Testimony is as follows. 
 
Ms. Sagness: I can talk a little bit about what has been proposed from the discussions that 
have occurred in the Children’s Behavioral Health Taskforce but also with many of the people 
in this room. In some of our consultations even with other states looking at where they have 
what’s called a system of care, it is one of the things that really seems to be a piece of the 
missing puzzle for the state of North Dakota with remedying some of our behavioral health 
gaps and that is that we have lots of services. There is an early intervention system for a 
certain age group in a certain population and we know that there is parent to parent programs 
that are offered through Mental Health America or the Federation of Families, we know that 
there is residential therapy and Prairie St. Johns. There are all of these pieces but they are 
not all put together in one comprehensive system of supports and services. The 
recommendation that came forward from the group was that it is really difficult to access 
services and know how to navigate and where you go and how you get those services. One 
of the recommendations that we heard from a consultant that works with the Children and 
Family Services Division in the state of New Jersey, more than a decade ago implemented 
their system of care. What they put together were crisis teams that were available so that if 
a mom is struggling with her 12-year-old at midnight they have one place to call and that 
mom can seek service and basically make that phone call and have access to that entire 
system of services and support. One of the things that they learned is that they started with 
it being crisis and they realized that when they created criteria of crisis that even if something 
wasn’t a crisis and they said no it’s not bad enough now, it will escalate. They no longer have 
the threshold of saying we must have this escalated crisis before we intervene. The biggest 
thing they said to us was when we develop this system we have to be thoughtful that a parent 
will not call to tell on themselves or their children. The idea that we are missing is who do you 
call when you’re a parent and your 10-year-old is suicidal, who do you call? I hear Corey 
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Peterson say all the time that Juvenile Court shouldn’t be the door in, it should be the door 
that you bounce off of if you accidentally get there and you don’t need to be there. This is 
about developing a system of connection and between services and supports and I don’t 
believe that can be done at a state level, I believe that has to be done at a local level. There 
has to be a local/regional connection because every region has different gaps, needs, and 
systems. I have been a therapist and I don’t know anything of inclusion specialists, I wouldn’t 
have known to make a referral to that because I was in my silo of the behavioral health world. 
I didn’t know about those other systems so I think the same way that we looked at the HSRI 
study, we said what are the resources that we already have in order to say what are the gaps 
so that we can start to close those gaps. Do we know what all the resources are right now 
across the systems and who they serve? The children’s taskforce started to put together that 
directory but we realized that we just behavioral health. The conversation about children’s 
behavioral health never talked about behavioral health because it was a bigger need, people 
came to testify about things much broader than behavioral health gaps that we had and at 
the end of the year we looked at each other and said, we really didn’t talk about behavioral 
health services, we have talked about all the supports, preventions, and parts of it but not 
comprehensively one. The proposal that came forward was about this, and this is from many 
meetings and discussions, maybe there are things that don’t work looking from other states 
on how it comes to North Dakota. We probably can’t have 24 hour on site crisis services that 
are provided to every family in the state but I think it is something to look towards and learn 
what parts that we can do. The intent is to connect all of those services and supports which 
also should include basic needs because that could be basic shelter and food. So when we 
say services and supports it’s not just clinical people talk to each other, its clinical people 
knowing how to access the support services. There has been a lot of work that has been 
done and Corey Peterson has kind of spear headed the dual status youth work but, there is 
a population here of youth that are involved both in the child welfare system and also the 
juvenile justice system. The work that has been done in dual status youth is speaking 
specifically to that population who are in both systems at the same time. One of the things 
that we have identified thorough that work is that there is a need for services. It doesn’t 
eliminate the fact that all of the pieces work together. Everyone in the courts or the juvenile 
justice should have access to this full realm of services but it shouldn’t be the front door and 
I think that’s the thing that we have clearly heard. This is all a cross population I would say 
that we want to shrink the number of youth in these services because they were able to get 
services here without having to go to the juvenile system first. The concept is the same thing 
that we have been doing with the justice re-investment. You shouldn’t have to go to prison to 
get treatment.    
 
Senator Anderson: Explain to us why the group we had working didn’t work out and why 
this approach is better? Someone needs to also have some suggestions here to move the 
agency directors out of the committee, the strategy needs to move into the implementation 
of the various agencies. My question is does the group the authority to move that into 
implementation if those people aren’t there? 
 
Ms. Sagness: First ill address the removal of the agency directors. I don’t have any concerns 
about that partially because I feel like if you looked at the behavioral health taskforce where 
we just had representation from the agencies, there was a missing piece. It was basically, 
each one of us knew only what we knew in our parts of our system and there wasn’t that 
engagement at a broader place. I’m assuming that the departments would still present and 
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participating but not necessarily overseeing their own programs and the Olmstead 
commission has made the similar move, we saw the same thing that they did which is it was 
administered basically by the department so it didn’t have that global view. When we look at 
disabilities what about transportation and so on and so forth. It was restructured in order to 
bring all of the departments as a consulting piece to come in and provide testimony but they 
are not the decision makers that are overseeing themselves.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: There was a perceived conflict of interest also with Olmstead. 
 
Senator Anderson: Do you think that the governor is strong enough to drive this to the 
implementation phase, is that the vision here? 
 
Ms. Sagness: I don think this is simple, I don’t think that having a representative from the 
governor’s office when can move to implementation, but I do think that if we don’t have 
involvement from all branches that this wasn’t a broad enough approach. We need to figure 
out what we are going to implement first.  
 
Senator O. Larsen: Where does the native population fit into this? 
 
Ms. Sagness: I think that’s part of why we need to re-access resources. I would look at all 
services regardless of population need to be assessed. I don’t think we have assessed truly 
looking at the full continuum looking across all services, I don’t think we have a clear vision 
of what that is yet.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Each of the tribes are allotted a representative to this group and we 
would hope that the Indian Affairs office would be participating and offering resources as 
well.  
 
Senator Hogan: Do you think other circles that are on the fringe or around are education 
because we have so many behavioral health bills in the education committee this time and 
the crisis of behavioral health issues that the schools are facing now also interplay actively 
and that may be a circle similar to court and cps and the education piece is one that is clearly 
missing and then the healthcare providers. We don’t know who is doing what with kids.   
 
Ms. Sagness: I think there are many pieces and by no means I don’t mean a tiny drawing 
on white board to be the grand scheme. The feedback that we have received is, we need a 
system that people can access and not feel punitive an access point maybe the education 
and healthcare system so that there is a point of entry. They need to know who to call and 
when I meet with primary care physicians they don’t know who to call.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: We need to have that kind of input but if we have such an enormous 
group and everyone is in the original group nothing ever happens so everybody would have 
an opportunity for input I guess is my vision of this.  
 
Ms. Sagness: If there's one thing that I could ask that there are a lot of good programs in 
this state that aren’t scaled, there are some places where there are really good things 
happening but it is only happening in one town, region, or provider and so it would benefit us 
all to find those programs and invest in those things that already exist be people who are 
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already doing it well and be able to identify those gaps. It is not about organizationally 
changing anyone’s roles or jobs, it is about how do we come together as a system to meet 
the needs of not just the child but mom, dad, grandparents, and everyone else who is trying 
to support those children.   
 
Madam Chair Lee: I think a good example of that is the family nurse visiting that is don’t in 
Grand Forks county which has been very affective which the outcomes show far reaching 
implications because of reductions in emergency visits and CPS reports. Those kinds of 
things to broaden those types of services.  
 
Pam Sagness: To go back to Senator Andersons question about the history, I don’t have 
the history. It was prior to my involvement so I would have to differ that to someone else.   
 
(27:11-30:26) Roxanne Romanick, Executive Director for Designer Genes: The reason 
why we are passionate about starting at the earliest point that we can which includes prenatal 
supports is that those early supports mitigate the condition of down syndrome and the people 
having that diagnosis so because of that I have ended up being a huge champion for our 
states part C early intervention system which serves infants and toddlers from birth to 3 years 
of age. I am going to pass out our fax sheet (Please see Attachment #1 for fact sheet). I 
want to draw attention and ask you to consider an amendment to line 23 on page 2 to include 
the early childhood care and education system to this. I am passionate about what we can 
do and where that early care and education system is in the circle that Ms. Sagness drew for 
you. If we don’t keep pushing those down and thinking about those investments, we will 
continue to be sending folks to Corey Peterson, so we really want to encourage you to make 
sure that any committee that is formed will include the early childhood care and education 
system, along with part C.   
 
(29:45) Madam Chair Lee: Subsection B is where you want that inserted? 
 
Roxanne Romanick: If we could insert early care and education in front on education. I do 
think that you will have a richer experience with any type of commission if you have some 
type of consumer voice represented so that would be my other addition to consider.  
 
Senator Anderson: I think this is neutral testimony. I had Alex (Senate Human Services 
Intern) print out what we are repealing and this taskforce on children’s behavioral health 
sounds a lot like what we have here, but apparently didn’t accomplish all the goals we wanted 
so the new governor and the new group of people if we replace it with something and they 
think it will work better, then we should give it a roll.  
 
Madam Chair Lee ends the discussion of SB 2313.  
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Madam Chair Lee opens continued discussion on SB 2313.  
 
Senator Anderson: I have a print out of what we are repealing and it looks very similar to 
what we have in this bill but apparently it has fallen into this use and so I think that the 
rejuvenation of it with this bill and the new emphasis behind it should work.  
 
Senator Hogan: I am totally comfortable with the suggestions of the change in membership, 
would you like a motion? 
 
Madam Chair Lee: I would, but would you like to include or do separately Mrs. Romanick’s 
request about adding early child hood education.  
 
Senator Hogan: Perhaps, should we say early childhood care? 
 
Senator K. Roers: Do we need to be that specific or? That group may choose to focus on 
that or may say we have a big enough piece of pie to bite off as is.  
 
Senator Hogan: Early childhood often gets lost. I like having early childhood care being in 
there.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: We could say early child hood care, education. Just pop it in there. I don’t 
think we would lose anything by doing that but it is up to the committee what your preferences 
might be. What we would be doing then would perhaps would be before education on line 23 
add early intervention and education? 
 
Senator Hogan: Or early childhood services, because that could be child care centers.  
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Madam Chair Lee: So would you like your motion to read and then discuss on page 2 line 
23 following “regarding” add “early childhood services”  
 
Senator Hogan: I think it acknowledges that kind of distinct thing.  
 
Senator Anderson: When I’m looking at this repeal, it looks like we passed this original 
behavioral health taskforce in 2017 which is only last session but apparently we didn’t 
implement it or didn’t use it for anything.  
 
Senator Hogan: The group worked on issues but because it was primarily the department 
heads, the private entities didn’t feel like they had a voice and the same as the consumers. 
This is broader.  
 
Senator K. Roers: I’m wondering if the four individuals are enough.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: It’s a good question but I don’t have a conclusion here but I would think 
that the bigger the group gets the less they are going to get done.  
 
Senator K. Roers: I don’t disagree, but if you only have one private provider you may also 
still get a narrow focus because they only know their world.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: How would you suggest we adapt to that? 
 
Senator K. Roers: I’m wondering if there is some way to say, I don’t know how you would 
say to include other people that may not be official members of the group but to make sure 
that they understand that part of this is them reaching out and learning what others are doing.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Maybe there is a way that we can emphasize that, but I see the same 
thing for those four department heads that we are deleting in this. I want them to be a 
resource so maybe we need to consider adding a sentence or a phrase that would emphasize 
the fact that other stake holders would be involved in an advisory capacity but not as voting 
members of the group.  
 
Senator Hogan: I have attended a few of these meetings and they were active meetings but 
they were kind of telling, this is what we do, but when there were problems identified they 
didn’t get to the problem solving culture of who is going to address cross systems issues. I 
think the idea of having parents as members they felt that they could provide testimony but 
they weren’t active in the decision making process.  
 
Senator K. Roers: I don’t know that we necessarily even need to spell it out in century code 
but making sure that whoever it is, this group understands what the intent is and the direction. 
What is the outcome we hope from this? 
 
Madam Chair Lee: The strategy I think is important when determining how we are going to 
have a unified approach to this so that someone can come and make sure they have access 
to all of the services and we are missing some. That’s why I think it is important to have the 
tribal representatives there as well. I’m not opposed to adding someone, I’m just thinking that 
I don’t want to be too prescriptive. I want the group to be able to have the responsibility to do 
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this but, if we feel we need to provide more direction for them or more people on the 
committee representing certain areas, now is a really good time to think about that.  
 
Senator Anderson: I think we are going to put you and Senator Hogan in a room and you 
come up with this solution here because you both know all about this stuff.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: That is what I was going to suggest because we have another hearing 
coming up, so we will set this aside.  
 
Madam Chair Lee closes the continued discussion on SB 2313. 
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(03:05-15:43) Pam Sagness Director of the Behavioral Health Division with the 
Department of Human Services gives an overview of the proposed amendments for 
SB 2313 to the committee which includes merging SB 2204 to section 3 of SB 2313. 
Please see Attachment #1 for proposed amendments.  
 
(13:42) Senator Anderson: We heard from the sponsor on one of these bills that have said 
they wanted to bills to stand separately, have you been able to talk to them? 
 
Pam Sagness: Our concern was merging them into one group because they have very 
different focus. Instead what we have done is created the juvenile justice group to still exist 
of a subcommittee of the cabinet that is short lived, so that way the juvenile justice work can 
still be focused on, at the same time that global cabinet can focus and be an ongoing driving 
connection for children services. Also, it was Corey Peterson and Lisa Bjergaard working 
with Representative Meier and Senator Dever that had initiated SB 2204 and so that is who 
has been working with me to create this draft.   
 
Madam Chair Lee: Now we had talked about a private provider of mental health services, 
so we are not doing that? 
 
Pam Sagness: No.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: We have moved the expiration date up two years? 
 
Pam Sagness Correct.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Are there any questions for Mrs. Sagness about moving SB 2204 over 
to SB 2313.  
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(16:02-17:16) Madam Chair Lee asks Senator Anderson to introduce his guest to the 
committee and Madam Chair Lee gives his guest an overview of what SB 2313 is about 
and what the committee is trying to do with the amendments.  
 
Pam Sagness: The children’s cabinet will still do the system of services directive which was 
section one on SB 2313, SB 2204 becomes the justice reinvestment for kids and that will be 
a term of six years and then we will end the current Children’s Behavioral Health Taskforce. 
If you look at it, these three things are short term and will end and the only thing that will still 
continue is the global (inaudible) cabinet. We want to ensure that we don’t just have clinical 
services but also the supports.  
 
Senator Heckaman: I look at the dates on the amendment and it is effective until 2025 and 
I look on the dates on SB 2204 and it is 2027. Is that okay to leave it as 2025? 
 
Pam Sagness: That was actually a recommendation by juvenile court they felt that six years 
was adequate.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Ok, so SB 22014 is well covered with that. SB 2313 we really just 
changed terminology to the cabinet and changed the date. I just want to make sure that I’m 
not missing anything that might have been changed in SB 2313. We had a proposed 
amendment about adding early childhood services at the time to page 2 line 23 on SB 2313. 
The children’s commission shall, which would then be cabinet.  
 
Senator K. Roers: I also heard that we were striking all of the page 2 lines 1-7? 
 
Pam Sagness: Yes, that is removed in these proposed amendments.  
 
Senator K. Roers: Back to Senator Lee’s first question, on subsection 4 do you have a 
preference on whether that is included or not. 
 
Pam Sagness: I have no opinion.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: What would be the thoughts of the members of the committee about 
including a representative of early childhood services.  
 
Senator K. Roers: I don’t think it was actually requesting representation from them, it was 
when they were developing strategies that they consider early childhood services in their list.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Right on page 23. So, committee would you like to include the phrase 
about early childhood services? 
 
Senator Anderson: When you start adding one person then there are many people who 
want to be included and it becomes a longer and longer list. I guess I am comfortable to 
leaving it up to the people who are to select who is working.  
 
Senator K. Roers: I don’t think this one was asking for another person, it was just asking 
that when they are creating this strategy that they consider early childhood education as one 
of the strategies, I think.  
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Madam Chair Lee: Page 2, Line 23, 4B “Develop strategies to address gaps or needs 
regarding” and that’s where she wanted to early childhood services, so “address gaps or 
needs regarding early childhood services, education, medical and behavioral health, 
community child welfare, and juvenile justice” so yes, that would just be a matter of that being 
considered as part of the strategy. Any thoughts? Otherwise, we will leave it as it is.  
 
Pam Sagness: There is on more change we would offer post amendment. There is a part 
that I just noticed here. If you got to page 3 of the amendments, number 5. Which says 
“members of the commission who are state employees would be paid by the governor”. I’m 
assuming that means their agency not actually paid by the governor. We might want to re-
word that.  
 
Senator Anderson: if you read it carefully it indicates that those are to be payed are not 
state employees by the governor so, I agree that it might be re-worded.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: How would we put that? 
 
Pam Sagness: Employees would be paid by their agency.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: I think the phrase that talks about being paid by the governor, means 
that the employees who are paid by the governor are separate from the ones who aren’t state 
employees.  
 
Pam Sagness: I think the intent was that the first sentence is “a member of the commission 
who is not a state employee is entitled to reimbursement for mileage and expenses as 
provided by law for state officers and employees, to be paid by the governor.” I just think its 
messy and needs to be two separate things.  
 
Senator K. Roers: I wonder if we could just say “a member of the commission who is not a 
state employee is entitled to reimbursement for mileage and expenses as provided by law.” 
 
Senator Anderson: Maybe I would suggest to just move the phrase to paid by the governor 
up to “a member of the commission who is not a state employee is entitled to reimbursement 
for mileage and expenses, to be paid by the governor.” And then continue with the rest of the 
sentence.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Why do you ask Jonathan Alm how he would like to have that read. We 
know what we want to do so if you want to talk to Jonathan Alm.  
 
Pam Sagness: I have already e-mailed him and so if there are any other changes we can 
get them in those too.  
 
Senator Heckaman: The next sentence in there talks about the state employee to be paid 
by the employing agency. The state employee is already identified correctly.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: It’s for the people who are not state employees or not legislators because 
those who are legislators are going to get the Per Diem.  
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Senator K. Roers: I’m just wondering if we just strike to be paid by the governor.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Who is paying it? 
 
Senator K. Roers: Do we have to say that in law? 
 
Madam Chair Lee: Well, the other two parts of that segment are. It has to come out of 
somebody’s budget.  
 
Pam Sagness: Well, this is the juvenile justice piece just to be clear because the behavioral 
health division is already going to pay for the members of SB 2313, but specific with the 
juvenile justice group you may want to have that clarified because juvenile court isn’t a state 
agency.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: I think we understand the intent but I appreciate the fact that the verbiage 
was caught.  
 
(29:30-33:25) Madam Chair Lee and the committee receive a copy of SB 2313 and SB 
2204 markups with the proposed amendments (Please see Attachment #2) and takes 
a short break to get their copies together.  
 
Pam Sagness: There is only one thing that is different from the draft you are looking at, 
sections 3 and 4 were switched. They inserted SB 2204 as section 3 because the section 4 
is actually a repeal.  
 
(34:23) Madam Chair Lee: So we would then just be looking for a do not pass on SB 2204. 
Recognizing that our only challenge here is clarifying the language on who pays the people 
who are not state employees, are you interested in acting on the amendment.  
 
Senator Anderson: I will move to ADOPT AMENDMENTS 
Seconded by Senator O. Larsen 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE TAKEN 
6 YEA, 0 NAY, 0 ABSENT 
MOTION CARRIES TO ADOPT AMENDMENTS  
 
Senator Anderson: I will move a DO PASS, AS AMENDED on SB 2313. 
Seconded by Senator O. Larsen 
 
Madam Chair Lee: Senator Clemens I want to make sure that you are satisfied here because 
I know you were a part of that taskforce that will be blended in here.  
 
Senator Clemens: There's another bill about the task force 
 
Madam Chair Lee: That’s in the house I think.  
 
Senator Clemens: Yes, so that is still going to be coming.  
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Madam Chair Lee: If they pass it we will have it but if we have these passed and the house 
treats these properly then we won’t need that one because I don’t want to play whoever gets 
signed last wins.  
 
Senator Clemens: The house bill is 1237 and that one never got amended the way it was 
supposed to be amended, and it is much more specific with the amendments that they 
worked on over the weekend. It is going to be presented on Tuesday, and that one is 
specifically dealing with sexual child abuse.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: It would include that as well as other things, I will let Pam Sagness 
respond because she is expert on what the whole commission is planning the strategy for 
services will include that, it is intended to broaden the outreach is what I am trying to say. 
 
Pam Sagness: The ongoing global cabinet is not specific to anyone topic and no different 
than the way we have called out the system of services and supports which is short term, get 
it don’t, and then we get to maintenance. By this I mean the North Dakota taskforce on the 
Prevention of Child Sexual Abuse. One of the concerns that I would have is that, that cabinet 
is big and global I don’t think they will be specifically addressing child sexual abuse. The 
knowledge that I have of the house bill that you mentioned is that it had originally come into 
the education committee because it was specifically looking at mandating training for 
educators and students on sexual abuse so they were looking to amend that to instead be 
the continuation of the already existing Child Sexual Abuse group if that correct? 
 
Senator Clemens: What got to be confusing was that the bill when it was introduced wasn’t 
addressing what this report had addressed and that’s why now it is coming with another 
amendment to cover what was in the final report but if, I guess if your confident that this is 
going to take care of everything that is in here then I don’t think anyone will have a problem 
with it.   
 
Madam Chair Lee: That is why I am asking you because you were on that taskforce and I 
want you to feel comfortable with the fact that we are looking at that to be a part of the strategy 
planning. 
 
Senator Clemens: Would it be proper to include something that specifically said child sexual 
abuse or does the abuse and neglect cover that because abuse is abuse.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Correct.  
 
Senator O. Larsen: When you start to do the carve out of the sexual abuse, what happens 
when you have some kid in the basement that is stuck in a cage and hasn’t been feed, that’s 
neglect. So when that goes into law and that is carved out they don’t really have to look at 
that, so when we say child abuse as a whole that encompasses everything from trafficking, 
sexual abuse, neglect. They have the opportunity to look at the whole field. That is my 
interpretation of the law on it anyway.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: I’m getting contacts particularly because my running mate is very 
concerned about child abuse and the ramifications for the perpetrator and the columns that 
have been written by someone who, from what I can tell, hasn’t done their research on the 
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topic but is just listening to someone who is concerned about it and the concerns are legit 
but there is always the bigger picture to look at. One of the things that the columns have 
focused on are mandatory sentences and I have learned here not to be eager to impose 
those types of things because there has to be some judicial latitude because every 
circumstance is unique and the other thing is, even if we change what the penalties might 
be, if we look at all of trying to figure out if there is a way to deal with the events and the crime 
but is there opportunity to re-unify that family if the person is in prison for 20 years that person 
isn’t going to be paying child support and the kids won’t able to see that parent. Maybe there 
is a way to help that person to get his/her ducks in a row and still be able to limited contact 
with those children who still consider that person to be their parent. I’m not trying to let anyone 
off but I think the judges have to be able to look at what is going on.   
 
Senator Anderson: I think Pam was about to answer the question about whether this child 
sexual abuse is included in this bill but additionally we are kind of moving away from have 
mandatory sentencing and letting the judges have some flexibility, so I think we might want 
to resist those retribution things that are coming out of a particular case.  
 
Pam Sagness: Just to respond to the question if you go to SB 2204 on page 2 in the middle 
of the page, you will numbers 4, A, and B. There is says “gather information concerning 
issues of children’s welfare including, education, abuse and neglect.” So it is definitely a focus 
of the commission to address child welfare which is specifically abuse and neglect. I think 
there is certainly the ability but however, I do think it is important to note that the cabinet is a 
very top tier cabinet and will likely steer things in a very global way. The opportunities for 
sub-groups, work-groups, sub-committees. I think that will be essential. If you look the 
cabinet is not specific to behavioral health, so it is my job to make sure that we are doing the 
behavioral health work to be providing any opportunities or education to that cabinet. I think 
we all have those opportunities whether we are in early education, whether we are looking 
at the reform that has already been presented for, I have another one that id bring forward 
which is the substance exposed newborns. We did an incredible amount of work two interims 
ago and yet we have a plan that hasn’t been implemented. Part of what we all need to do is 
the content experts are to bring forward these types of reports and say to that larger body, 
this group that has all branches, how do we now make these things happen. We have a lot 
of reports that have not been implemented. We have had some amazing success recently 
with some of the behavioral health stuff, but substance exposed newborns haven’t been 
touched. There are a lot of recommendations in here that we haven’t done yet, so I think that 
we need to bring those things forward and also look at how we can utilize the top level multi-
branch group to guide out work as we move forward, but they won’t specifically be doing the 
content. I think that is important I don’t want anyone misconstrue that I think that cabinet will 
specifically focus on child sexual abuse but if the commission wants to they have the 
language and the directive to do so.  
 
Senator Clemens: Yeah, that is covered under abuse. The people that are in the house that 
were on the taskforce have been working with that bill but that bill HB 1237, really you don’t 
even want that to move on then, am I understanding that right? 
 
Madam Chair Lee: She understands what we are doing here and feels it will be hard to 
defeat it in the house because it’s a lot of work that has been done there, but if we have these 
passed here then what is included in that bill coming over is also going to be included in this 



Senate Human Services Committee  
SB 2313 
2/11/2019 
Page 7  
   

and once we got the ombudsman bill here in place then that is much easier for us to promote. 
If this includes those other pieces, then we don’t need those additional two bills. So if it 
passes the house then it comes over here.  
 
Senator Anderson: If we think there is something that is coming from the house that we 
would want to include in this bill than we should add it in. We can always amend the bill and 
have it go to a conference committee.  
 
Senator Clemens: Since I was on that taskforce, I think what I will do is give them the same 
conversation that we have had today.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: If their bill comes up today or tomorrow and this one isn’t on the floor 
until the day after I could see why they would pass theirs rather than anticipating what we 
are doing two days later, that is strictly calendar planning it’s not anything else.  
 
Senator Clemens: Even the taskforce no one is saying we just want this; everyone wants 
what is best for abused children that’s the bottom line. 
 
Madam Chair Lee: It’s a great resource for the larger group is what you put together on that. 
We don’t have to re-invent the wheel.  
 
Senator Anderson: Our bill will go over there too so if they see something that they would 
want to add in there then they can.  
 
Pam Sagness: One of the things that is important to note is that HB 1237 as a bill is 
specifically a directive to schools. That is why it is in the education committee and it actually 
doesn’t speak about the taskforce and so that was a proposed amendment or conversation 
and I haven’t seen a draft amendment for that bill so I think one thing that is really difficult if 
you go read HB 1237 it talks about directive to superintendents and schools and it’s in an 
education committee. The proposed amendment, at least when I have talked to some of the 
committee members, they had reached out because they felt uncomfortable with next steps 
because they are not supportive of the bill as a directive to schools. They like the idea of the 
work and now they are feeling a little uncomfortable with the fact that it is reaching into a 
realm that is outside of education. When you go read HB 1237 it doesn’t look like a taskforce 
and doesn’t look like anything like SB 2204 or SB 2313 because the language isn’t there yet. 
If it is amended to look like a continuation of the taskforce I would suggest there needs to be 
conversation of whether it is still an education focused bill or whether it is a human services 
focused bill.  
 
Senator Clemens: Your absolutely right, HB 1237 does not look like a very good bill directing 
to the DPI and I don’t know whatever happened, but there was a large amendment that was 
supposed to be put in but it never got done.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: I just wanted you to be comfortable with where we were going because 
you were a part of the taskforce and I was not and I don’t know that anyone else on that 
committee was either but as long as you feel like we are covering things ok here.  
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Pam Sagness: We support the efforts of the taskforce and we think the work is important I 
was trying to say the bill does not say taskforce yet so if we could see the amendment, I think 
then I would feel more comfortable identifying whether or not this work will overlap.  
 
Senator Anderson: Since we have completed our work on SB 2313 I move a do not pass 
on SB 2204 
 
Madam Chair Lee: Actually we haven’t voted on SB 2313, we have the motion but I just 
wanted to make sure that Senator Clemens felt like we had done the right things. If there is 
no further discussion on SB 2313 then we will vote on SB 2313. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE TAKEN  
6 YEA, 0 NAY, 0 ABSENT 
MOTION CARRIES DO PASS, AS AMENDED.  
Senator Lee will carry SB 2313 to the floor.  
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      Committee Clerk: Justin Velez 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to duties of the department of human services and creation of a children's 
commission; Relating to the children’s behavioral health task force. 
 

Minutes:                                                 No Attachments 

 
Madam Chair Lee opens the discussion on SB 2313. 
 
Madam Chair Lee: I did have a question for the group. What I was working on last night was 
the two floor speeches on the two children’s issues and I had it all put together but, I know I 
asked the question on whether or not we wanted to leave in or leave out protection and 
advocacy from the list of designated persons and the discussion was it was supposed to be 
out and I looked in the amendments and it is in. I don’t have any problem one way or the 
other but the amendments right now say it is in. When we took out the cabinet offices and 
that is not a cabinet office it is an entity. The other question that I had was I would like to see 
a position for the children’s advocacy centers on both of those commissions and councils. It 
is only on one, and we were trying to get out business done yesterday but I wanted to see 
what your thoughts were on that. I see a real role for those individuals both on the one that 
has to do with providing children’s strategies for services and also on the one that deals with 
the juvenile justice side so I would be really interested on a little bit of feedback from you on 
whether or not you would be interested in my doing a floor amendment.  
 
Senator K. Roers: The four designees, doesn’t one of them advocacy on it? 
 
Madam Chair Lee: One of the councils but not the other and I asked about that and we had 
a very brief conversation about it. The idea was it could be one of the governor’s appointees 
from the members of the public.  
 
Senator Hogan: They are on the commission for juvenile justice but just not on the children’s 
cabinet.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: I want to just run that one by you all again. If you think its fine I’m not 
going to get fussed up about it, but I just thought it was an important one to include.  
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Senator O. Larsen: I think about the flow of it. They are already working together, we want 
them to work together and blend and share the information. When they come up to it and 
they are left out of the conversation or they have to struggle to be a part of that table it doesn’t 
bother me a bit if they are open to being there and want to be part of it. It just seems like it is 
a continuation of the big picture.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: I want them to communicate with each other, they are two separate 
entities however. Any thoughts from anyone? Ok, so we will just leave it on the one.  
 
Madam Chair Lee closes the discussion on SB 2313. 
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☐ Subcommittee 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to duties of the department of human services and creation of a children's 
commission; Relating to the children’s behavioral health task force. 
 

Minutes:                                                 No Attachments 

 
Madam Chair Lee opens discussion on SB 2313. 
 
Madam Chair Lee: On SB 2313 it appears there is a lot of verbiage but actually the only 
change is on page 3 and underlined “by the department of corrections and rehabilitation”. 
She visited with Lisa Bjergaard and everything is cool with corrections on the money coming 
from there. The DOCR (Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation) will pay and the 
governor will staff. Would anybody be willing to reconsider our actions by which we passed 
SB 2313. 
 
Senator Hogan: I move to RECONSIDER THE ACTIONS on SB 2313. 
Seconded by Senator K. Roers 
 
VOICE VOTE TAKE  
MOTION CARRIES  
 
Senator Hogan: I move to FURTHER AMEND SB 2313 to add “by the department of 
corrections and rehabilitation” in section 5. 
Seconded by Senator O. Larsen  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE TAKEN  
5 YEA, 0 NAY, 1 ABSENT 
MOTION CARRIES TO FURTHER AMEND  
 
Senator Hogan: I move a DO PASS, AS AMENDED on the revised bill.  
Seconded O. Larsen 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE TAKEN  
5 YEA, 0 NAY, 1 ABSENT  
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MOTION CARRIES DO PASS, AS AMENDED 
Senator J. Lee will carry SB 2313 to the floor.  
 
Madam Chair Lee ends the discussion on SB 2313. 
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Title.02000 

Adopted by the Human Services Committee 

February 12, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2313 

Page 1, line 1, replace "a new section" with "two new sections" 

Page 1, line 3, replace the first "and" with a comma 

Page 1, line 3, replace "commission" with "cabinet, and creation of a commission on juvenile 
justice" 

Page 1, line 3, remove the second "and" 

Page 1, line 4, after "force" insert "; to provide a report to the legislative management; and to 
provide an expiration date" 

Page 1, line 15, replace "commission" with "cabinet" 

Page 1, line 16, replace "commission" with "cabinet" 

Page 1, line 18, replace "commission" with "cabinet" 

Page 2, remove lines 1 through 7 

Page 2, line 8, replace "i" with "L" 

Page 2, line 10, replace "k." with "9.:." 

Page 2, line 12, replace "1." with "�" 

Page 2, line 18, replace the first "commission" with "cabinet" 

Page 2, line 18, replace the second "commission" with "cabinet" 

Page 2, line 20, replace "commission" with "cabinet" 

Page 3, line 5, replace "commission" with "cabinet" 

Page 3, after line 6, insert: 

"SECTION 3. A new section to chapter 50-06 of the North Dakota Century Code 
is created and enacted as follows: 

Commission on juvenile justice - Reports . 

.L The commission on juvenile justice is composed of: 

a. Three members of the house of representatives, two of whom must be 
selected by the majority leader of the house of representatives and 
one of whom must be selected by the minority leader of the house of 
representatives: 

b. Three members of the senate, two of whom must be selected by the 
majority leader of the senate and one of whom must be selected by 
the minority leader of the senate: 

c. The governor, or the governor's designee: 
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d. The superintendent of public instruction, or the superintendent's 
designee: 

e. The executive director of the department of human services, or the 
executive director's designee: 

i. The director of the department of corrections and rehabilitation's 
division of juvenile services, or the director's designee: 

9.:. The executive director of the Indian affairs commission, or the 
executive director's designee: 

h. A director of juvenile court services, appointed by the chief justice of 
the supreme court: 

L. A representative from the commission on legal counsel for indigents: 
and 

L The following members appointed by the governor: 

ill A state's attorney: 

@ A representative of a children's advocacy center: and 

Ql A representative of a city police department. 

2. The governor shall designate one of the members of the commission to 
serve as the presiding officer. The governor's appointees serve at the 
pleasure of the governor. Excluding ex officio members, the term of a 
commission member is two years. 

3. The commission shall meet at least four times per year at the times and 
locations designated by the presiding officer. The office of the governor 
shall provide staffing for the commission. 

4. The commission shall: 

a. Review chapter 27-20: 

b. Gather information concerning issues of child welfare, including 
education, abuse, and neglect: 

c. Receive reports and testimony from individuals, state and local 
agencies, community-based organizations, and other public and 
private organizations, in furtherance of the commission's duties: 

d. Advise effective intervention, resources, and services for children: 

e. Report to and be subject to the oversight of the children's cabinet: and 

i. Annually submit to the governor and the legislative management a 
report with the commission's findings and recommendations which 
may include a legislative strategy to implement the recommendations. 

5. A member of the commission who is not a state employee is entitled to 
reimbursement for mileage and expenses as provided by law for state 
officers and employees to be paid by the governor. A state employee who 
is a member of the commission is entitled to receive that employee's 
regular salary and is entitled to reimbursement for mileage and expenses 
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to be paid by the employing agency. A member of the commission who is a 
member of the legislative assembly is entitled to receive per diem 
compensation at the rate provided under section 54-35-10 for each day 
performing official duties of the commission. The legislative council shall 
pay the per diem compensation and reimbursement for travel and 
expenses as provided by law for any member of the commission who is a 
member of the legislative assembly." 

Page 3, after line 7, insert: 

"SECTION 5. EXPIRATION DATE. Section 3 of this Act is effective through 
July 31, 2025, and after that date is ineffective." 

Renumber accordingly 
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February 12, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2313 

Page 1, line 1, replace "a new section" with "two new sections" 

Page 1, line 3, replace the first "and" with a comma 

Page 1, line 3, replace "commission" with "cabinet, and creation of a commission on juvenile 
justice" 

Page 1, line 3, remove the second "and" 

Page 1, line 4, after "force" insert "; to provide a report to the legislative management; and to 
provide an expiration date" 

Page 1, line 15, replace "commission" with "cabinet" 

Page 1, line 16, replace "commission" with "cabinet" 

Page 1, line 18, replace "commission" with "cabinet" 

Page 2, remove lines 1 through 7 

Page 2, line 8, replace "i" with "t." 

Page 2, line 10, replace "k." with "9.:." 

Page 2, line 12, replace '1" with "�" 

Page 2, line 18, replace the first "commission" with "cabinet" 

Page 2, line 18, replace the second "commission" with "cabinet" 

Page 2, line 20, replace "commission" with "cabinet" 

Page 3, line 5, replace "commission" with "cabinet" 

Page 3, after line 6, insert: 

"SECTION 3. A new section to chapter 50-06 of the North Dakota Century Code 
is created and enacted as follows: 

Commission on juvenile justice - Reports . 

.1. The commission on juvenile justice is composed of: 

a. Three members of the house of representatives, two of whom must be 
selected by the majority leader of the house of representatives and 
one of whom must be selected by the minority leader of the house of 
representatives: 

b. Three members of the senate, two of whom must be selected by the 
majority leader of the senate and one of whom must be selected by 
the minority leader of the senate; 

c. The governor, or the governor's designee; 
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d. The superintendent of public instruction, or the superintendent's 
designee: 

e. The executive director of the department of human services, or the 
executive director's designee: 

t The director of the department of corrections and rehabilitation's 
division of juvenile services, or the director's designee: 

9..:. The executive director of the Indian affairs commission, or the 
executive director's designee: 

!1. A director of juvenile court services, appointed by the chief justice of 
the supreme court: 

1. A representative from the commission on legal counsel for indigents: 
and 

i The following members appointed by the governor: 

ill A state's attorney: 

@ A representative of a children's advocacy center: and 

Ql A representative of a city police department. 

2. The governor shall designate one of the members of the commission to 
serve as the presiding officer. The governor's appointees serve at the 
pleasure of the governor. Excluding ex officio members, the term of a 
commission member is two years. 

3. The commission shall meet at least four times per year at the times and 
locations designated by the presiding officer. The office of the governor 
shall provide staffing for the commission. 

4. The commission shall: 

a. Review chapter 27-20: 

b. Gather information concerning issues of child welfare, including 
education, abuse, and neglect: 

c. Receive reports and testimony from individuals, state and local 
agencies, community-based organizations, and other public and 
private organizations, in furtherance of the commission's duties: 

� Advise effective intervention, resources, and services for children: 

e. Report to and be subject to the oversight of the children's cabinet: and 

t Annually submit to the governor and the legislative management a 
report with the commission's findings and recommendations which 
may include a legislative strategy to implement the recommendations. 

5. A member of the commission who is not a state employee is entitled to 
reimbursement for mileage and expenses as provided by law for state 
officers and employees to be paid by the department of corrections and 
rehabilitation. A state employee who is a member of the commission is 
entitled to receive that employee's regular salary and is entitled to 
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reimbursement for mileage and expenses to be paid by the employing 
agency. A member of the commission who is a member of the legislative 
assembly is entitled to receive per diem compensation at the rate provided 
under section 54-35-10 for each day performing official duties of the 
commission. The legislative council shall pay the per diem compensation 
and reimbursement for travel and expenses as provided by law for any 
member of the commission who is a member of the legislative assembly." 

Page 3, after line 7, insert: 

"SECTION 5. EXPIRATION DATE. Section 3 of this Act is effective through 
July 31, 2025, and after that date is ineffective." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 3 19.1121.01002 



Date: ;} I 11 / If 
Roll Call Vote #: I 

2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. J3 I J 
Senate Human Services Committee 

□ Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: _ __,_/--'-e/_.__._l-'-l-"'-a-'--1 _. _6-'-'/ tJ"---0_/,._ ________ _ 

Recommendation: �Adopt Amendment 
□ Do Pass □ Do Not Pass □ Without Committee Recommendation 
□ As Amended □ Rerefer to Appropriations 
□ Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: □ Reconsider 

Motion Made By 5-tr'\. �vidtr� 0 n 

Senators Yes 
Chair Lee )( 
Vice Chair Larsen y 
Senator Anderson x 
Senator Clemens v 
Senator Roers >(_ 

□ 

Seconded By 5er\. 0- Lt.c 5e-V\ 

No Senators Yes 
Senator HoQan X 

No 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) __ _,_(p.._ ___ No __ ___.,Q.,..__ ___ _ 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Date: .:J/ 11/ tq 
Roll Call Vote #: � 

2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. d1 )'3 

Senate Human Services Committee 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: -----------------------
Recommendation: □ Adopt Amendment 

� Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Without Committee Recommendation 

Other Actions: 

_:g1 As Amended D Rerefer to Appropriations 
D Place on Consent Calendar 
D Reconsider D 

Motion Made By �r'\ • iJv&f ::OV) Seconded By 5-e,f\ . 0 . La f>(,V\ 

Senators Yes No 
Chair Lee � 
Vice Chair Larsen ::;L. 
Senator Anderson � 
Senator Clemens 
Senator Roers x_ 

(Yes) 6 No Total 

Absent 

-----------

Floor Assignment >5ev1 :J Lee 
If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

Senators Yes 
Senator HoQan � 

D 

No 



Senate Human Services 

2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. ,;n I? 

□ Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: ------� 

Recommendation: □ Adopt Amendment 

Date: J, (I 'J, / l'i 
Roll Call Vote #: / 

Committee 

□ Do Pass □ Do Not Pass □ Without Committee Recommendation 
□ As Amended 
□ Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: 9'J-Reconsider 

□ Rerefer to Appropriations 

□ 

Motion Made By ':)et\ . ·tkj ah Seconded By .£et1 . l - /).o-e r 5" 

Senators Yes No Senators 
Chair Lee Senator Hogan 
Vice Chair Larsen l).. ,,.r 
Senator Anderson fi\ ,- y� J 
Senator Clemens '\. \ '() r\\LY 
Senator Roers - d 

" 
/\ \(\ �y 

( '- LI 

\ � )(}J . ' 
\\ ... ) / ,A\- . 

L v 
I\ f\ 

. 

\\\\)J 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) No -----------

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

Yes No 



Senate Human Services 

2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. )7/'3 

D Subcommittee 
,, 

Date: :;J/11,,/J 1 
Roll Call Vote #: � 

Committee 

Amendment LC# or Description: ((M 1':'--{ by add M5 aa fa,-c.3 -8--( +� ckf4 r,./-mt11f � 
(�<r(e,f.itM 'S t-nd f·4'Jab;\i' �ft'tm. II 

Recommendation: � Adopt Amendment 
□ Do Pass □ Do Not Pass □ Without Committee Recommendation 
□ As Amended □ Rerefer to Appropriations 
□ Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: □ Reconsider □ 

Motion Made By Sfll · lkgarl Seconded By S-et1. tJ. lc.f>-C 11 

Senators Yes No 
Chair Lee ,J 
Vice Chair Larsen >(. 
Senator Anderson 
Senator Clemens x.... 
Senator Roers v 

(Yes) No Total 

Absent 

-----------

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

Senators Yes No 
Senator HoQan X 

0 



Senate Human Services 

2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. ]efl? 

□ Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 

Date:;>/1 21/ 14 
Roll Call Vote #: 3 

Committee 

-----------------------
Recommendation: □ Adopt Amendment 

Other Actions: 

� Do Pass □ Do Not Pass 
�As Amended 
□ Place on Consent Calendar 
□ Reconsider 

□ Without Committee Recommendation 
□ Rerefer to Appropriations 

□ 

Motion Made By )efl , l� Seconded By 

Senators Yes No 
Chair Lee x.. 
Vice Chair Larsen _,?( 
Senator Anderson 
Senator Clemens ✓ 
Senator Roers X 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) -----------

Floor Assignment Xnq-/-or J. Lee 

No 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

Senators Yes No 
Senator Hocian .)!.. 

l) 



Com Standing Committee Report 
February 13, 2019 8:15AM 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_28_014 
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Insert LC: 19.1121.01002 Title: 03000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2313: Human Services Committee (Sen. J. Lee, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
(5 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2313 was placed on the 
Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 1, replace "a new section" with "two new sections" 

Page 1, line 3, replace the first "and" with a comma 

Page 1, line 3, replace "commission" with "cabinet, and creation of a commission on juvenile 
justice" 

Page 1, line 3, remove the second "and" 

Page 1, line 4, after "force" insert "; to provide a report to the legislative management; and to 
provide an expiration date" 

Page 1, line 15, replace "commission" with "cabinet" 

Page 1, line 16, replace "commission" with "cabinet" 

Page 1, line 18, replace "commission" with "cabinet" 

Page 2, remove lines 1 through 7 

Page 2, line 8, replace "L" with "i." 

Page 2, line 10, replace "ls.:' with "g_,_" 

Page 2, line 12, replace "l" with ".!1." 

Page 2, line 18, replace the first "commission" with "cabinet" 

Page 2, line 18, replace the second "commission" with "cabinet" 

Page 2, line 20, replace "commission" with "cabinet" 

Page 3, line 5, replace "commission" with "cabinet" 

Page 3, after line 6, insert: 

"SECTION 3. A new section to chapter 50-06 of the North Dakota Century 
Code is created and enacted as follows: 

Commission on juvenile justice - Reports . 

.1. The commission on juvenile justice is composed of: 

E.:. Three members of the house of representatives, two of whom must 
be selected by the majority leader of the house of representatives 
and one of whom must be selected by the minority leader of the 
house of representatives; 

Q,. Three members of the senate. two of whom must be selected by the 
majority leader of the senate and one of whom must be selected by 
the minority leader of the senate; 

c. The governor, or the governor"s designee; 
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g,. The superintendent of public instruction, or the superintendent's 
designee: 

e. The executive director of the department of human services, or the 
executive director's designee: 

.t The director of the department of corrections and rehabilitation's 
division of juvenile services, or the director's designee: 

g,_ The executive director of the Indian affairs commission, or the 
executive director's designee: 

.b.,. A director of juvenile court services, appointed by the chief justice of 
the supreme court: 

L. A representative from the commission on legal counsel for indigents: 
and 

i. The following members appointed by the governor: 

ill A state's attorney: 

m A representative of a children's advocacy center: and 

.@} A representative of a city police department. 

2-,. The governor shall designate one of the members of the commission to 
serve as the presiding officer. The governor's appointees serve at the 
pleasure of the governor. Excluding ex officio members, the term of a 
commission member is two years. 

� The commission shall meet at least four times per year at the times and 
locations designated by the presiding officer. The office of the governor 
shall provide staffing for the commission. 

4. The commission shall: 

§..:. Review chapter 27-20: 

b. Gather information concerning issues of child welfare, including 
education, abuse, and neglect: 

c. Receive reports and testimony from individuals, state and local 
agencies, community-based organizations, and other public and 
private organizations, in furtherance of the commission's duties: 

g,. Advise effective intervention, resources, and services for children: 

e. Report to and be subject to the oversight of the children's cabinet: 
and 

.t Annually submit to the governor and the legislative management a 
report with the commission's findings and recommendations which 
may include a legislative strategy to implement the 
recommendations. 

§,. A member of the commission who is not a state employee is entitled to 
reimbursement for mileage and expenses as provided by law for state 
officers and employees to be paid by the department of corrections and 
rehabilitation. A state employee who is a member of the commission is 
entitled to receive that employee's regular salary and is entitled to 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 2 s_stcomrep_28_014 



Com Standing Committee Report 
February 13, 2019 8:15AM 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_28_014 
Carrier: J. Lee 

Insert LC: 19.1121.01002 Title: 03000 

reimbursement for mileage and expenses to be paid by the employing 
agency. A member of the commission who is a member of the legislative 
assembly is entitled to receive per diem compensation at the rate 
provided under section 54-35-10 for each day performing official duties of 
the commission. The legislative council shall pay the per diem 
compensation and reimbursement for travel and expenses as provided 
by law for any member of the commission who is a member of the 
legislative assembly." 

Page 3, after line 7, insert: 

"SECTION 5. EXPIRATION DATE. Section 3 of this Act is effective through 
July 31, 2025, and after that date is ineffective." 

Renumber accordingly 
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☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Nicole Klaman 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to duties of the department of human services, creation of a children’s cabinet, and 
creation of a commission of juvenile justice, relating to the children’s behavioral health task 
force; to provide a report to the legislative management and to provide an expiration date. 
 

Minutes:                                                 3 

 
Pam Sagness, Director of the Behavioral Health Division of the Department of Human 
Services:  See attachment 1.  This is the combination of  2313 and 2204.  
 An estimated 12-25% of ND students have an emotional or behavioral disorder.  Noting 
particular challenges for families with complex behavioral health needs that result in multi-
system involvement creating a theme for a more comprehensive continuum of services for 
children and youth. 
 
Rep Dick Anderson:  12-25% of ND students have an emotional or behavioral disorder?  Is 
that rate growing and why?  It seems sometimes we are working on the wrong end to fix 
things. 
 
Pam Sagness:  Youth works behavior survey shows positive trends prior to 2007 in areas of 
mental health.  Since 2007 charts show a consistent increase.  Regarding your question if 
we are working on the wrong end.   Whenever possible we should prevent. 
(0:06:06) 
 
Rep. Anderson:  From a distance, we were much more physically active than these kids are. 
I feel more physical activity would serve a good purpose. 
 
Pam Sagness:  A lot of discussion about the change of progress, some suggest that is when 
we see the connectivity to electronics.  There has been a good decrease in underage drinking 
and the work we’ve been doing on substance abuse that we are not seeing in mental health 
but we cannot use the funding we receive for substance abuse for behavioral health.  This is 
a HIPPA Funding limitation 
 
Rep. Karen Rohr:  Initially the Section 3 was not part of this bill so why was that added and 
please discuss the fiscal note. 
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Pam Sagness:  The original part that was not included was from bill 2204.  That bill talked 
about creating a commission to look at the wellbeing of youth.  It came out of the fact with all 
the justice reinvestment work there wasn’t a focus on kids.  We saw that 2313of having that 
cabinet plus a focus on developing actual system supports and services for youth is different 
than a 6 year review of juvenile justice policy.  The department of corrections will pay for the 
commission members not included or  not state employees.  We have the means to pay for 
the non-state members through our federal block grant that pays for consumer 
representatives for the children’s cabinet.  The governor’s office is named as staffing.  There 
are several places you can see there is shared resources. 
 
Rep. M. Ruby:  The way it reads to me, the commission on juvenile justice gathers 
information concerning issues of child welfare including education of use and neglect.  The 
children’s cabinet develops a strategy.  Couldn’t you have 1 do all of that? 
 
Pam Sagness:  The important focus is the membership.  The children’s cabinet is all 3 
branches and focuses on a long standing oversite or vision.  Making sure all parties are 
involved while working on developing a comprehensive children’s system that is 
comprehensive and connected.  The juvenile justice system is short term having more 
legislative representation because it’s about policies and is short term assessment. 
 
Rep. Devlin:  When I look at 50-06-03 Task force of behavioral health.  To me you would 
have been better to tweak that than to start all over. I have some serious problems with what 
is trying to be done when you have something in place already that has proved effective.  Did 
you look at doing that and why did you chose not to? 
 
Pam Sagness:  This would replace the language develop the behavioral health task force.  I 
would challenge whether the behavioral health task force has been effective.  Partially 
because it’s sister agencies are the only ones on the task force, missing consumer 
representation, missing agency provider representation.  There is nobody on the task force 
but the 6 state agencies.  Feedback questioning where the voice of family members was and 
consumers as well as other branches. The work of the task force was not comprehensive 
and were outside the state agency task force can address.  And initially the task force was 
to have 20 members, with a  fiscal note attached to reimburse travel and time.  Once the 
fiscal got removed, it became a task force of 6 state agencies. 
 
Rep. Devlin: My point was I believe that could have been tweaked, to add the consumer 
representation and other things you needed, rather than starting over. 
I’m a little reluctant to think the Department of human Services and the Department of health 
would not be on it, beings they deal with this all the time.   
 
Rep. Devlin: I can’t speak to why it was written the way it was but I can speak to the intent.  
That being an opportunity that would truly make change for kids and their families.  If there 
is a better way to do that, we are open to those recommendations. 
 
Representative Kathy Skroch: Is the current task force given authority to bring on 
advisement to hear and participate in the conversation? 
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Pam Sagness:  There was public testimony available at every hearing or meeting of the 
behavioral health task force to look at the language again to see what the authority was.  I 
can speak to the chair, Chris Jones from Dept. of Human Services.  This isn’t the same in 
the voting as having consumer representatives. 
 
(0:15:50) 
Rep. Skroch:   If the children’s cabinet is established, how responsive or submissive would 
agencies and stake holders have to be to the children’s cabinets recommendations? 
 
Pam Sagness:   That is the reason to include all branches, to be more responsive. 
 
Lisa Bjoerngaard:  Director of Juvenile Services:  Offer support on this bill if combined and 
answer any questions. No written testimony provided  
 
Rep. Bill Tveit:  2 words I want to bring in, coordinate and update.  Isn’t that our job between 
all the departments and can this be accomplished without adding another bill? 
 
Lisa Bjoerngaard:  We struggled long and hard in the Behavioral Task Force trying to figure 
out a way we could insure we had the breadth and depth to cover the waterfront needing to 
be covered.  The uniform juvenile court act has not been examined and reworked for 40 
years, which is outside the scope of behavioral health.  You are right, we should be sharing 
our resources which is different than looking at it and whether it meets the needs of kids in 
families, 
(0:20:32) 
 
Rep. Rohr :  It states in Section 5 that Section 3 will expire or become ineffective July 31st 
2025.  What happens with the policies reviews at that point? 
 
Lisa Bjoerngaard:  If we decide that we need an ongoing body after 6 years, we can always 
change that but our intent was to do something along the lines of the Alternatives to 
incarceration group that met for a finite period of time, they did some deep work and 
completed it and moved on.  
 
Rep. Mary Schneider: Do you have concerns that the composition of the children’s 
cabinet doesn’t have context of human services beyond the staffing? 
 
Lisa Bjoerngaard: I defer to their judgment on that and have respect for Pam’s judgement 
on this. So no, I have no concern. 
 
Jim Vetter, Vice President of Partner and Community Relations for Dakota Boys and Girls 
Ranch, see attachment 2.  Over 31 years of service, I have seen the changes in kids referred 
for placement.  They have become younger but still have multiple complex issues that bring 
them to us.  This is an opportunity to make system changes and better serve ND kids. 
 
Chairman Weisz: Opposition?  Seeing none, closes hearing. 
 
 
Testimony received outside hearing 
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Roxane Romanick, Executive Director of Designer Genes: In support  Attachment 3 
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☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Nicole Klaman 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to duties of the department of human services, creation of a children’s cabinet, and 
creation of a commission on juvenile justice relating to the children’s behavioral health task 
force, to provide a report to legislative management and to provide an explanation. 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Weisz: opened hearing 
 
Representative Kathy Skroch: Can this not be accomplished in existing committees? 
 
Chairman Weisz: To a degree you can.  The bill sponsor thinks it’s very important to create 
this specific task force to get it done.  I do believe the Dept. of Corrections could accomplish 
this.   
We kind of have 2 different bills, I’d like to take up the Juvenile justice section first and get a 
sense. 
 
Rep. Karen Rohr:  It’s going to be deleted is it moving it to anyplace else? 
 
Chairman Weisz: No it wouldn’t it would be up to Dept. of Corrections to put something 
together. 
 
Rep. Schneider I think this provides good structure, something the Dept. of Corrections 
may not be able to accomplish.   
 
Chairman Weisz: We will have a discussion about the Children’s cabinet and then the 
Justice system. 
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      Committee Clerk: Nicole Klaman 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to duties of the department of human services, creation of a children’s cabinet, and 
creation of a commission on juvenile justice relating to the children’s behavioral health task 
force, to provide a report to legislative management and to provide an explanation. 
 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Weisz: opened meeting 
 
Chairman Weisz: They were 2 separate bills Senate Human services combined the 
juvenile justice with the children’s cabinet.  We kind of have 2 different bills, I’d like to take 
up the Juvenile justice section first and get a sense. 
 
Representative Bill Tveit:  Are you suggesting we split them back into two separate bills?   
 
Chairman Weisz: No, I want to deal with it separately. 
 
Representative Mary Schneider:  I do like this, I think it should have been in a separate bill. 
I’ve gotten a lot of support for it, I’m not clear who is against it and if you could share why. 
 
Rep. Dick Anderson:  The fiscal note, is this with the Dept. of Corrections? 
 
Chairman Weisz: It just happens within their budget. 
 
Rep. Devlin: I don’t have a strong feeling either way  but there was some thought regarding 
the resolution we passed.  The court is doing a study resolution of their own.  Makes me 
question why we are duplicating it. 
 
Chairman Weisz: We will leave it in. 
Sections 1 and 2, Children’s cabinet.  If there are additional questions, Ms. Sagness is here.   
 
Rep. Devlin I don’t think there is a need for a children’s cabinet.  Maybe it would be better 
to add a couple people to the task force.  I’d rather work with what is in code. 
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Rep. Rohr:  Pam what would happen if we didn’t have this cabinet? 
 
Pam Sagness, Director of Behavioral Health, Dept. of Human Services:  Current board is six 
state agencies but we feel it should engage all 3 branches of government, a tribal 
representative and a consumer representative.   The children’s system is fragmented.  The 
goal is doing better for children. 
 
Chairman Weisz: Some of the concern seems to be Dept. of Human Services is being left 
out.  What was the rational of the makeup? 
 
Pam Sagness:  There was reform done to the Ohmstead commission.  Senator Lee modeled 
it after that, but made it broader than just human services.   
 
Rep. Dobervich: The children’s cabinet is really a coordinating group? 
 
Pam Sagness:  Yes, that’s correct.   
 
Rep. Tveit: In the current system we’ve had a communication breakdown.  Do you see this 
bill fixing that? 
 
Pam Sagness:  It’s not about the state agencies not being able to work together, it’s the fact 
that there are many levels: State, county, local. 
 
Rep. Tveit: Page 3 line 5, Title change.  Is there a significance or just a play on words? 
 
Pam Sagness:  There seemed to be a lot of word duplication.   
 
Rep. Rohr:  Expiration date so would these committees just go away? 
 
Pam Sagness: Over the next couple sessions we would work with the Legislation that work 
would then be concluded and would not be an ongoing effort but that the children’s cabinet 
be ongoing. 
 
Chairman Weisz: Committee, suggested amendments. 
 

Rep. Rohr:  Move amendment  
 
Rep. Skroch: Second 
 
Voice vote: Amendment Section 3 remains and Keep Juvenile justice system; page 1 line 4. 
Motion Carries 
 
Rep. Devlin: line 13 page 2 everything before shall remove, replace with the Chair of 
Legislative management 
 
Rep. Rohr: Motion to adopt amendment 
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Rep. M. Ruby: Second 
 
Voice Vote:  Amendment page 2 line 13 of original bill, everything before shall remove, 
replace with the Chair of Legislative management 
Motion Carries 
 
Rep. Tveit:  Move a Do Pass As Amended 
 
Rep. Skroch:  Second 
 
Roll Call Vote:  14 Yes  0 No  0 Absent 
Do Pass As Amended 
 

Rep. Rohr carries. 
 
Chairman Weisz: closes meeting 
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Adopted by the House Human Services 
Committee 

March 20, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2313 

Page 1, line 1, replace "a" with "two" 

Page 1, line 1, replace "subsection" with "subsections" 

Page 1, after line 14, insert: 

"SECTION 2. A new subsection to section 50-06-05.1 of the North Dakota 
Century Code is created and enacted as follows: 

To provide resources on mental health awareness and suicide prevention 
to the behavioral health resource coordinator at each school. The 
resources must include information on identifying warning signs, risk 
factors, and the availability of resources in the community." 

Page 2, line 6, remove "of each" 

Page 2, line 6, replace "are" with "is" 

Page 2, line 13, replace "governor, or the governor's designee" with "chairman of legislative 
management" 

Page 2, line 19, after "regarding" insert "early care and" 

Page 2, line 28, remove "and" 

Page 2, line 30, replace the underscored period with ": and 

h,_ Receive information and recommendations from the department of 
human services, department of corrections and rehabilitation, and 
other state agencies." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 19.1121.03001 



House Human Services 

2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CAL

2�TES 
BILL \ b 

□ Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description : 

Date: "3..-J-0 ...-l °1 
Roll Call Vote #: \ 

Committee 

-----------------------
Recommendation : � Adopt Amendment 

□ Do Pass □ Do Not Pass □ Without Committee Recommendation 
□ As Amended □ Rerefer to Appropriations 
□ Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: □ Reconsider □ 

Motion Made �-· rZc_;.__kv ______ Seconded By f?c12 '6k.ro vb 

Representatives Yes No Representatives 
Robin Weisz - Chairman Gretchen Dobervich 
Karen M. Rohr - Vice Chairman Marv Schneider 
Dick Anderson 
Chuck Damschen 
Bill Devlin 
Clayton Feq lev \ I \ 
Dwiqht Kiefert \ I \ 
Todd Porter \ 'I 
Matthew Ruby ., 
Bill Tveit 
Greq Westlind 
Kathy Skroch 

No Total 

Absent 

(Yes) -----------

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

/ 
/ 

6u,+io M 6 Yl� � S 
pa...":)t l U V\e '-t- ��'> 

N'vt1\ v\A � � 

-

Yes No 



Date: 3..., ;).O ;' l q 
Roll Call Vote #: ;), 

2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL C�L VOTES 
BILL hl,3 

House Human Services Committee 

□ Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: -----------------------
Recommendation: � Adopt Amendment 

□ Do Pass □ Do Not Pass □ Without Committee Recommendation 
□ As Amended □ Rerefer to Appropriations 
□ Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider 

Motion Made By Pee- Quh. (  

Representatives 
Robin Weisz - Chairman 
Karen M. Rohr - Vice Chairman 
Dick Anderson 
Chuck Damschen 
Bill Devlin 
Clayton Fegley 
Dwight Kiefert 
Todd Porter 
Matthew Ruby 
Bill Tveit 
GreQ Westlind 
Kathy Skroch 

Yes 

... "' "' ' 

□ 

Seconded By � 12\A.,b '--/ 
No Representatives Yes 

Gretchen Dobervich 
Mary Schneider 

-r / 
I \ / 
I \ / 

V 

No 

No 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) ----------- ---------------

Floor Assignment 



DatJ'c/{) ,  � 
Roll Call Vote #: 

House Human Services 

2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 'J 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. .9'\ 3 j 3 
□ Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: \ � • l l � \ . o 3 QO 1 tT :fit. {)l{-ooo 

Recommendation: □ Adopt Amendment 

Committee 

�Do Pass □ Do Not Pass 
� As Amended 

□ Without Committee Recommendation 

□ Place on Consent Calendar 
Other Actions: □ Reconsider 

□ Rerefer to Appropriations 

□ 

Motion Made By �
� . lv e .\ -\: Seconded By &p. �ocb 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 
Robin Weisz - Chairman Y--.. Gretchen Dobervich 'I--
Karen M. Rohr - Vice Chairman "'-- Mary Schneider " 
Dick Anderson � / 

Chuck Damschen "t.. 
Bill Devlin y 
Clayton Fegley l✓ 
Dwiqht Kiefert V 
Todd Porter {/ 
Matthew Ruby ·..z 
Bill Tveit y 
GreQ Westlind ''l. 
Kathy Skroch 

, . 

Total (Yes) \<{ No 

Absent 

Floor Assignment � Ro� 
I f  the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Com Standing Committee Report 
March 21, 2019 9:26AM 

Module ID: h_stcomrep_50_005 
Carrier: Rohr 

Insert LC: 19.1121.03001 Title : 04000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2313, as engrossed: Human Services Committee (Rep. Weisz, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended , recommends 
DO PASS ( 1 4  YEAS , 0 NAYS, 0 ABS ENT AN D NOT VOTI NG) .  Engrossed SB  23 1 3  
was p laced o n  the S ixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1 ,  l i ne  1 ,  rep lace "a" with "two" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 1 ,  rep lace "subsection" with "subsections" 

Page 1 ,  after l i ne  1 4 , insert :  

"SECTION 2. A new subsection to section 50-06-05 . 1 of the North Dakota 
Centu ry Code is created and enacted as fo l lows : 

To provide resou rces on menta l  health awareness and su ic ide prevention 
to the behaviora l  hea lth resou rce coord inator at each schoo l .  The 
resou rces must inc lude information on identifyi ng warn ing s igns, r isk 
factors, and the avai lab i l ity of resou rces in  the commun ity." 

Page 2, l ine 6 ,  remove "of each" 

Page 2, l i ne  6, rep lace "are" with "§" 

Page 2 ,  l i ne  1 3 , rep lace "governor, or the governor's  designee" with "chairman of legis lative 
management" 

Page 2 ,  l i ne  1 9 , after " regard ing" insert "early care and" 

Page 2 ,  l ine 28,  remove "and" 

Page 2 ,  l ine 30, rep lace the underscored period with "; and 

he Receive information and recommendat ions from the department of 
human services, department of correct ions and rehab i l itat ion, and 
other state agencies . "  

Ren umber accord i ng l y  
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Imagine an adult who requires the support of publicly 
funded programs, such as behavioral health, corrections , etc . 

• Is that adult a parent? 
Solution: Support is provided to their children if eligible 
so the children receive supports needed. Positive early 
experiences are essential prerequisites for later success 
in school , the workplace, and the community. 
This solution helps improve the trajectory of 

the children. 

• Could that adult have benefited from 
early supports when they were a child? 
Solution: ND Early Intervention services could have 
mitigated a behavioral health need or reduced an 
ACES score. ND Early Intervention could have prevented 
or reduced the severity of a developmental delay. 
Early Intervention could have improved environmental 
access and improved independence for the child and 
advocacy skills of their parent. Services to young 
children who have or are at risk for developmental 
delays have been shown to positively impact outcomes 
across developmental domains, including health, 
language and communication, cognitive development, 
and social/ emotional development. 
This solution may have improved the trajectory of 

the adult. 

ND Early Intervention and early childhood 
programs provide foundational support to children 
and adults that can result in benefits to education, 
child welfare , behavioral health (including mental 
health and addiction) , developmental disabilities ,  
and corrections systems. 

Early Intervention services 
can improve outcomes ! 

For more information visit 
friendsndpartc@gmail . com 
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Part C of the Individuals with Disabilities Act (IDEA) 
makes it possible for North Dakota to meet the needs of 
infants and toddlers with delays and/or disabilities and their 
families . North Dakota Early Intervention is administered 
by the Division of Developmental Disabilities within the 
North Dakota Department of Human Services . 

What makes up ND Early Intervention? 

Administration - a fu l l -t ime  coo rd i nato r 
works fo r Deve lopmenta l D isab i l it ies a nd  
manages t h e  Pa rt C prog ram .  

North Dakota Interagency Coordinating 
Council (NDICC) - a boa rd a ppoi nted by 
the governor  to p rovide advice and  ass ista nce 
to the Pa rt C p rog ram .  

Service Coordination - t h e  No rth Dakota 
Depa rtment of Human  Services, Developmenta l 
D isab i l i t ies Prog ram Ma nages services fo r 
ch i l d ren  a nd  fam i l i es .  

Technical Assistance & Training -
The Pa rt C p rog ram offe rs tra i n i ng a l i g ned 
with  the  evidence-based practices, wh ich  is  
cr it ica l to p rovi d i ng  q u a l ity se rvices. 

FACTS : 

Experienced Parents - a peer-to-peer 
resou rce made up of pa rents, who have had  
ch i l d ren i n  ea r l y  i nte rvent ion ,  h i red to  p rovide  
emotiona l  and i nformation supports to  fam i l ies. 

Right Track - a p rog ram that p rovides 
deve lopmenta l screen i n g  a n d  g u ida nce to 
he lp  identify c h i l d re n  who may be e l i g i b l e  for 
se rvices. R ight  Track p rovides 48% of refe rra ls  
to Ea r ly I nte rvent ion  Services .  

Infant Development - Services provided 
d i rect ly to fam i l ies a n d  c h i l d re n  in the fa m i ly's 
home us ing n atu ra l  l ea rn i n g  opportu n it ies 
l i n ked to da i ly rout i nes .  These services a re 
provided by Occu pati ona l  The ra py, Physica l 
Therapy, Speech a nd  La nguage  Patho logy, 
Ea r ly Ch i l d hood Spec ia l Ed ucat ion ,  b i rth  
th rough  2, N u rs i ng  o r  Soc i a l  Work. 

• N D  Ea rly I nte rvention is  funded through  • Ch i l d re n  with d e l ays who re ce ive ea r ly 

supports such as  ea rly intervention services 

resu lt i n  a savings of $30K-$1 00K 

S.fl 
$301{-$ l 00I{ 

.Li 1 ........... ...., 

a comb i n at ion of sources  wh i c h  i n c l u d e  

t h e  U . S .  D e p a rtment o f  Ed u c ati on ,  

M e d i c a i d ,  and  state g ene ra l  fu nds .  pe r  ch i l d  ( G l a s coe  and  Shap i ro,  2004) .  

20 1 7  ND Ea r ly I nterventi on  se rv i ces  • Both R ight Tra ck  and ND  Ea rly I nte rvention 

• were d e l ivered to 2,803 i nfa nts, tod d l e rs ,  se rvi ces  a re statewide, a c ross reservations, 

a n d  the i r  fa m i l i e s  s c h o o l  d i str i cts, a nd l e g i s l at ive d i str icts .  



PROPOS ED AMENDMENTS TO S ENATE B I LL NO.  231 3 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 1 ,  replace the second "and" with a comma 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 2 ,  after "50-06" i nsert " ,  and a new sect ion to chapter 54-07" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 3 ,  rep lace the fi rst "and" with a comma 

6B ;>3 t 3  
o> / ll / l C( 
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Page 1 ,  l i ne 3 ,  rep lace "commission" with "cab i net, and estab l ish ing a commission on  

juven i le  justice" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 3 ,  remove the second "and" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 4 ,  after "force" i nsert " ;  to provide a report to the leg is lative management; 

and to provide an exp i ration date" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 1 5 , rep lace "commission"  with "cab inet" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 1 6 , rep lace "commission" with "cab i net" 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 1 8 , rep lace "commission"  with "cab inet" 

Page 2 ,  remove l i nes 1 through 7 

Page 2 ,  l i ne 8 ,  rep lace "1." with '1" 
Page 2 ,  l i ne 1 0 , rep lace "t_" with "g/ 

Page 2 ,  l i ne 1 2 , rep lace "L." with "�" 

Page 2 ,  l i ne 1 8 , rep lace the fi rst "commission" with "cab i net" 

Page 2 ,  l i ne 1 8 , rep lace the second "commission"  with "cab inet" 

Page 2 ,  l i ne 20 ,  rep lace "commission" with "cab inet" 

Page 3 ,  l i ne 5, rep lace "commission" with "cab inet" 

Page 3, after l i ne  6 i nsert :  

SECTION 3.  A new sect ion to chapter 54-07 of the North Dakota Centu ry 

Code is created and enacted as fo l lows : 

"Commission on juven i le justice - Reports. 

1 .  The commission on juven i le  justice is composed of: 

a .  Three members of  the house of representatives, two of 
whom must be selected by the majority leader of the house 
of representatives and one of whom must be selected by the 
m inority leader of the house of representatives; 

b .  Three members of the senate, two of whom must be 
selected by the majority leader of the senate and one of 
whom must be selected by the minority leader of the senate; 

Page No .  1 



• C .  The governor  or  the governor's designee; 

d .  The superi ntendent of pub l ic  i nstruct ion o r  the 
superintendent's designee; 

6 6  J3 )3  
(}.;ju/ I 'f 
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e .  The executive d i rector o f  the  department of human services 
or  the executive d i recto r's designee; 

f. The d i rector of the department of corrections and 
rehab i l itation 's d ivis ion of juven i le  services or the d i rector's 
designee; 

� The executive d i rector of the Ind ian affa i rs commission o r  
the  executive d i rector's des ignee; 

h .  A d i rector of juven i le  cou rt services appoi nted by the ch ief 
just ice of the supreme court; 

i .  A state's attorney appointed by the governor; 

1 A representative from the commission on legal counsel fo r 
ind igents; 

k. A representative of a ch i l d ren's advocacy center appo inted 
by the governor; and 

I .  A representative of a city po l ice department appointed by the 
governor. 

2 .  The governor  sha l l  designate one of the members of the 
commission to serve as the presid i ng officer. The governor's 
appointees serve at the pleasure of the governor. Exclud ing ex 
officio members, the term of a commission member is two years .  

3 .  The commiss ion sha l l  meet a t  least fou r  times per year at the t imes 
and locations designated by the presid ing officer. The office of the 
governor  shal l  provide staffing for the commission .  

4 .  The commiss ion sha l l :  

a .  Review chapter 27-20 of the North Dakota Century Code; 

b .  Gather i nformation concern i ng issues of ch i ld ren's welfare, 
i nc lud ing education ,  abuse, and neglect; 

Page No .  2 
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5 .  

C Receive reports and test imony from ind ivid uals, state and 
loca l agencies, commun ity-based organ izations, and other 
pub l ic  and private organ izations, in  fu rtherance of the 
commission's d uties; 

d .  Advise effective i ntervention,  resources, and services fo r 
ch i ld ren;  

e .  Report to and be subject to the oversight of the ch i ld ren 's  
cab inet; and 

f. Annua l ly submit to the governor  and the legislative 
management a report with the commission's fi nd ings and 
recommendations wh ich may inc lude a legislative strategy to 
implement the recommendations .  

A member  of the commission who is not a state employee is  
entit led to re imbursement for m i leage and expenses as provided by 
law for state officers and employees to be pa id by the governor. A 
state employee who is a member of the commission is entit led to 
receive that employee's regu lar  sa lary and is entit led to 
re imbursement for m i leage and expenses to be pa id by the 
employing agency. A member of the commission who is a member 
of the legis lative assemb ly is entit led to rece ive per d iem 
compensation at the rate provided under section 54-35- 1 0  fo r each 
day perform ing offic ia l  d uties of the commission .  The legis lat ive 
counc i l  sha l l  pay the per d iem, compensation, and re imbursement 
for the trave l and expenses as provided by law for any member of 
the commission who is a member of the legis lative assembly. " 

Page 3 ,  after l i ne  7 i nsert:  

"SECTION 5 .  EXPIRATION DATE. Section  3 of th is Act is effective 

through Ju ly 3 1 , 2025 ,  and after that date is  i neffective . "  

Renumber accord i ng ly 
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Sixty-sixth 
Legislative Assembly 
of North Dakota 

:If;)_ f5 , J 

SENATE BILL NO. 2204 

Introduced by 

Senators Dever, Heckaman 

Representatives Heinert, Keiser, Meier, J .  Nelson 

A B I LL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 54-07 of the North Dakota 

Century Code, relating to establishing a commission on children's health and wel l-being; to 

provide a report to the legislative management; and to provide an expiration date. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION+." A new section to chapter 54-07 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 

and enacted as fol lows: 
h' , _ ... , . c.'- & J \.,\,\l"t.. ' "' J '-"'Q'I' 

� Commission on SRiktreR'& healtl, a11d well-being - Reports . 

.:L. The commission on el'lildd»"���98iRg is composed of: 

a. Three members of the house of representatives, two of whom must be selected 

by the majority leader of the house of representatives and one of whom must be 

selected by the minority leader of the house of representatives: 

b.  Three members of the senate, two of whom must be selected by the majority 

leader of the senate and one of whom must be selected by the minority leader of 

the senate: 

c. The governor or the governor's designee; 

d. The superintendent of public instruction or the superintendent's designee; 

e. The executive director of the department of human services or the executive 

director's designee: 

.t. The director of the department of corrections and rehabilitation's division of 

juvenile services or the director's designee; 

g_.,_ The executive director of the Indian affairs commission or the executive director's 

designee; 

.b., Th8-Gt.te t:10eltl I office, or ti 1e state I 1eeltl'l offieer's d'isigneej 

Page No. 1 19 .0541 .01000 
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L. A d i rector of juven i le court services appointed by the ch ief justice of the supreme 

i A state's attorney appointed b� the governor:_, _ "- _ _  �� I',.. A �,"'-�+-h� o4:- tM- b ,n.c:O�♦ � c.•""'"' 
� A representative of a ch i ldren 's advocacy center appointed by the governor: 

+ A representative of a city pol ice department appointed by the governor: and  

-R:i A repre5,9nt.ti1.<0 of a Fesielen�ial e"1ild eaFc meility appoi11ted by ti ,e gooe1 1 mr. • 

7 2 .  The governor shal l  designate one of the members of the commission to serve as the 

8 

9 

presid ing officer. The governor's appointees serve at the pleasure of the governor. 

Exclud ing ex officio members, the term of a commission member is two years. 

1 0  3 .  The commission sha l l  meet at  least four t imes per year at the times and locat ions 

1 1  

1 2  

1 3  

1 4  

1 5  

1 6  

1 7  

1 8  

1 9  

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

designated by the presid ing officer. The office of the governor shal l  provide staffing for 

the commiss ion .  

The commission sha l l :  ...__ _ 
,t 

� ,  "'-"""" �7- �o l,lt'\.I � Ol,..� C.1""1- -.t 
«'" )I)  Gather information concern ing issues of chi ldren's welfare, includ ing education, 

abuse. and neglect: 

-e. , Receive reports and testimony from ind ividuals, state and local agencies, 

commun ity-based organ izations, and other public and private organ izations, in 

furtherance of the commission's d uties: 
c,.Auf'S(.. 

� Pf:0111'-"t effective i ntervention, resources, and services for ch i ldren: 

...a-:- !::Valuate ti 1e effestivonoss an El efficier 1cy of state se, vices and ro&Qb1rc0s toe 

....e!Tildreh S WE!ll-bei1 i!t;-

e.  Annual ly submit to  the governor and the legislative management a report with the 

commission's find ings and recommendations wh ich may inc lude a legis lative 

strategy to implement the recommendations. 

25 6 .  A member of the commission who is not a state employee is entitled to reimbursement 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

3 1  

for mi leage a n d  expenses a s  provided by law for state officers and employees t o  be 

paid by the governor. A state employee who is a member of the commission is entitled 

to receive that employee's regular salary and is entit led to reimbursement for mi leage 

and expenses to be paid by the employing agency. A member of the commission who 

is a member of the legislative assembly is entitled to received per diem compensation 

at the rate provided u nder section 54-35-1 0 for each day performing official duties of 

Page No .  2 1 9 .0541 . 0 1 000 
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the commission. The legislative counci l  shal l pay the per diem, compensation. and 

reimbursement for the travel and expenses as provided by law for any member of the 

commission who is a member of the legislative assembly. ...,,_..,r �E:tTJlN S � -SECTIOt� 2. EXPIRATION DATE. This Act is effectLve through July 3 1 .�. and after that 
Ls e..c.-tro "' 4 _; date is ineffective. 
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SENATE BILL NO. 231 3 

'50 .)3 13 
dv/ 1 1 /  , '1  

#-Z 0, · '1  
Introduced by 

Senators J. Lee, Hogan, Poolman 

Representatives Rohr, Westlind 

A B I LL for an Act to create and enact a new subsection to section 50-06-05. 1  and a new section 

to chapter 50-06 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to duties of the department of 
c...b;,.,c.,.+ 

human services and creation of a children's eomFRi&si01'1; and to repeal section 50-06-43 of the 

North Dakota Century Code, relating to the children's behavioral health task force. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1 .  A new subsection to section 50-06-05 .1 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

created and enacted as fol lows: 

To develop a system of services and supports to provide behavioral health services 

and supports in the community for children at risk of or identified as having a 

behavioral health condition and for the families of these children. This system must 

include early intervention. treatment. and recovery services and supports and must 

interface with. but not include. child protective services or juvenile court. 

SECTION 2. A new section to chapter 50-06 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 

and enacted as fol lows: 
C olo� ,.,,+ Chi ldren's eornfflissieR - Membersh ip - Duties. 

C,.o.bi "c.,...,_ 
.1. The children's -eeR1R1issioA is created to assess. guide. and coordinate the care for 

children across the state's branches of government and the tribal nations. 

2 .  The children's "�����R consists of the following members: 

a .  The governor. or the governor's designee: 

b .  The chief justice of the supreme court. or the chief justice's designee; 

c. The speaker of the house of representatives. or the speaker's designee: 

d. The president pro tempore of the senate. or the president pro tempore·s 

designee: 

e. The superintendent of public instruction. or the superintendent's designee: 

Page No. 1 19 .1121 .01000 
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f. The mcecbltive directgr gf U:10 ElopartA'leAt of hblrAOA services. or tl,e el<eeuti-ve 

l!li1 cctrn s deslgtree: 

-9:!-- The iteltfi health officot; or tl=le state health offioer's Eleoignee: 

-1:l.... 1he 'iXOGl,JtiYo Elireeter ef tl,e lneliaFI affairs eo111111issio1 ,. or tl,e e�eeutive 

ciir:&ctor'i dosignee:0 

+ l:he mmeutii..10 director of tl=le elepart111ent of eo1 1 ectio11s a11d , eltabllltatlon. or the

..execbltiYe elireeter's desig11ee: 

1. The director of the committee on protection and advocacy. or the director's 

designee: 

k. A representative of each of the tribal nations in the state. who are appointed by 

the governor: and 

1. Four individuals representing parents. private service providers. or other 

community interests. who are appointed by the governor to serve a term of two 

years. at the pleasure of the governor. and who are entitled to reimbursement 

from the department of human services for travel and lodging at the same rate as 

provided for state officers and employees. 

3 .  The governor, or the governor's designee. shal l serve as the presiding officer of  the 
CA'-'"''-+- c.a.bl "c..t-

eo111111issiotf. The �rnrnission shall meet at least quarterly. Additional meetings may 

be held at the discretion of the presiding officer. 
c,a.b11-1d· 

4. The children's eoFRFRis&ioi;i shal l :  

a. Coordinate broad-based leadership across programs. agencies. branches of 

government, and tribal nations to meet the needs of children: 

b .  Develop strategies to address gaps or needs regarding education. medical and 

behavioral health. community, child welfare. and juvenile justice: 

c.  Develop strategies to provide for the ful l  continuum of care in the delivery of 

services. including promotion. prevention. early identification and intervention. 

service delivery, and recovery: 

d. Seek to engage cooperation across public and private service providers: 

e.  Provide a comprehensive vision for how and where children are best served. 

attending to children in a respectful and relevant manner: 

Page No. 2 1 9 . 1 1 2 1 . 0 1 000 
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:L. Seek strategies to provide services to children without consideration of prior 

engagement with juvenile services: and 

g,_ Provide for the active participation of consumers and providers statewide on 

advisory committees. 
ea b:Mu-

The department of human services shall provide the children's -een::u:.�issi01'1 with 

6 staffing and administrative services. 

7 SECTION 3. REPEAL. Section 50-06-43 of the North Dakota Century Code is repealed . 
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Engrossed Senate B i l l  23 1 3 - Department of H uman Services 

House Human  Services Committee 

Representative Robin Weisz, Cha i rman 
March 6 ,  20 1 9 

Cha i rman  Weisz and members of the House Human Services Committee , I am 

Pame la  Sagness ,  D i recto r of the Behaviora l  Hea lth Div is ion of the Department of 

H u man Services (Department) . I appear today to provide  testimony i n  support of 

Senate B i l l  23 1 3 .  

An estimated 1 2% to 25% of North Dakota students have an  emotiona l  o r  behaviora l  

d isorde� .  The state 's  youth surveys conti nue to see increas ing rates of depression 

and su ic ida l  thoughts . The Behaviora l  Health System Study pub l ished in Apri l  of 

20 1 8  noted , "we observed particu lar cha l lenges for fam i l ies with com plex behaviora l  

hea lth needs that resu lt i n  mu lti-system i nvo lvement" and "a common theme in  

stakeho lder  i nterviews was a need for a more comprehensive conti nuum of  services 

for ch i ld ren  and youth" .  Fou r  specific recommendat ions were created to enhance 

and  stream l i ne  the system of care for ch i ld ren  and youth with comp lex needs :  

1 .  I mprove coord i nation between education ,  early ch i ld hood , and service systems 

for  ch i ld ren  and youth . 

2 .  Expand targeted , proactive i n-home supports for fam i l ies with ch i ld ren  a n d  youth 

at risk  of foster care p lacement and justice i nvo lvement .  

3 .  Deve lop a coord inated system for enhancing treatment foster care capacity and 

i ncreas ing  the cu ltu ra l  respons iveness of foster care p lacements . 

4 .  P rio ritize res ident ia l  treatment for ch i ld ren and  youth with t he  most s ign ificant and 

comp lex needs .  

Senate B i l l  23 1 3 supports the  implementat ion of  these goa l s  by: 



• 

� )  
�J.J l3 

i/v / l -� 
�- 2. • d i recti ng the Department of Human Services to deve lop a system of services 

and supports for ch i l d ren at risk of or identified as having a behaviora l  hea lth 

cond it ion and the i r  fami l ies. 

• Creati ng a Ch i ld ren 's Cabinet to assess,  gu ide  and coord i nate the care for 

ch i l d ren  across the state's b ranches of government and tri ba l  nations .  Which 

wi l l  rep lace the Task Force on  Ch i l d ren 's  Behavio ra l  Health and 

• Creati ng a commission on juven i le  just ice to review and update juven i le  

just ice po l icy over the next 6 years .  

Th is  conc ludes my testimony, and I am happy to  answer any questions .  

; Forness, S . R . ,  K im ,  J . ,  & Wal ker, H .M .  (2012) .  Preva lence o f  stu dents with EBD :  I m pact on genera l education .  

Beyond Behavior, 21 ( 2) ,  3 -10 .  Retri eved from :  https ://er ic .ed .gov/? id=EJ975007 
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Test imony 

House Human  Services Committee 

Representative Robin Weisz, Cha i r  

March 6, 2019 

Cha i rma n We isz, a nd mem be rs of the House H u m a n  Serv ices Com m ittee, I 

a m  J i m  Vette r, Vice P res ident of Pa rtne r  a nd Com m u n ity Re l a t ions  fo r Da kota 

Boys a nd G i r l s  Ra nch .  The Ra nch was fou nded in 1952 a nd is a res i dent ia l 

t reatment a nd ed u cat iona l cente r fo r c h i l d re n  a nd t he i r  fa m i l i es .  We have 

treatme nt a nd ed u cat ion a l  cente rs i n  M i not, Fa rgo a nd B i sma rck .  Da kota Boys 

a nd G i r l s  R an ch  h a s  48 Psych iatr ic Res ide nt i a l Treatment  Fac i l ity ( P RTF)  beds a nd 

44 Res ident ia l C h i l d  Ca re Fa c i l ity ( RCCF)  beds .  

:#:2-
&l?J )-01 � 
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Da kota Boys a nd G i r ls  Ra nch s upports e ngrossed SB  2313 .  I n  my 31  yea rs at 

the Ra n ch ,  I h ave seen many cha nges in the k ids that  a re refe rred fo r p l a cement .  

In rece nt  yea rs, the k ids  have become you nge r, but they st i l l  h ave the mu lt i p l e  

com p l ex i s sues  that  b r i ng  them to p l a cement .  I be l i eve SB  23 13 wi l l  g ive u s  the 

opportu n ity to m a ke system cha nges to bette r se rve North  Da kota k ids .  

The re i s  a rea l  need to stre ngthen  p revent ion effo rts i n  com m u n it ies a nd 

schoo l s .  Ea r ly p revent ion wi l l  keep  some k ids  from be ing  removed from the i r  



homes .  The re a l so i s  a need to strengthen  tra ns it ion a nd com m u n ity se rvices that  

he lp  k ids  retu rn to  the i r  homes and rema i n  i n  t he i r  home com m u n it i e s .  SB  2313  

wi l l  a sse m b le  a g roup  of  ded i cated i n d ivid ua l s  that  wi l l  gat he r  d ata i n  order  to 

d r ive system cha nges fo r k ids  i n  No rth  Da kota . 

Tha n k  you fo r you r  t ime a nd I wi l l  do my best to a nswe r a ny q uest ions  you 

may have .  

J im Vetter 

Vice Pres ide nt, Pa rtne r  a nd Com m u n ity Re lat ion s  

Da kota Boys a nd G i r l s Ra nch 

1227 35th St. N . , B ism a rck, N D  58501 

Phone :  701-224-1789 

E -ma i l : j .vette r@da kota ra nch . o rg 



• 

• 

• 

D E S I GN E R 
G EN ES 

A ·  D O W N  · S Y N  D R O M E · S U  P P O RT· N E T W O R K  

S B  231 3  

House Human Services 

Wednesday, March 6, 2019 

Cha i rman  Weisz a nd  Members of the House Human  Services Committee :  
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My name i s  Roxane  Roman ick and I 'm represent ing Designer  Genes of N D, I nc . ,  as the i r  Execut ive 

D i rector . Des igne r  Genes' membersh ip  represents 220 i nd ividua l s  with Down synd rome that either 

l ive in our state or  a re represented by fam i ly members in North Dakota .  Designer  Genes' m iss io n is to 

strengthen  opportun it i es for i nd ivid ua l s  with Down synd rome and  those who support them to earn, 

l ea rn ,  a nd  be long .  

I am  he re today to ask for an  amendment to SB 2313 .  Specifica l ly, I 'd  l ike to see the words "early care 

and education" inserted on page 2 (Section 2), Line 26, just prior to "education" . 

I am  p romot ing th i s  change because I fi rmly be l i eve that together we shou ld  be m it igati ng d i sab i l ity 

and  ch ron i c  hea lth concerns pr ior to ch i l d ren even gett ing to schoo l .  If we ca n p rovide  a guarantee to 

ou r  N D  ch i l d ren a nd  fam i l ies that they wi l l  have qua l ity ch i l d  ca re sett ings, opportun it ies for preschool 

if they want it, coord i n ated deve lopmenta l  screen i ng  p rograms, and  a go l d  sta r  "specia l  education" 

a rm for s upport ing i nfa nts, todd l e rs, and p reschoo lers with d isab i l it ies and the i r  fam i l i es, then we wi l l  

have someth i ng  to  b rag a bout i n  our  state. 

I t ru ly  be l i eve that we wi l l  be contin u ing to invest in  deep-end costs such as  correct ions, add ict ion, 

excessive specia l  educat ion supports, and long-term behaviora l hea lth care if we can't insure that 

we're cons ideri ng  the  p reventive measu res we can provide  d u ring ou r  ch i l d ren's youngest years. Li nes 

28 - 30 of the  b i l l  ta l ks a bout "prevention, ea r ly identificat ion and i ntervent ion" and  yet we've left the 

an arena out  of the b i l l  t hat has been proven return on i nvestment .  I 've i nc l uded a handout with my 

test imony about i nvestment in ea r ly ca re and educat ion p rograms .  

1 
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I 'm  not a researche r, b ut I have examp le  after examp le  of i nd ivid ua l s  with Down synd rome ( inc lud ing 

my daughter), who with ear ly  investments now requ i re fewer instruct iona l  a i de  hours i n  school ,  can be 

i ndependent ly emp loyed without a job coach,  who can l ive independently i n  a n  apartment with just a 

few hou rs of support i n stead of be ing p laced i n  an  i n st itut ion . I a l so had the opportun ity to work in our 

North Dakota Pa rt C Ea rly I ntervention system for fifteen years. As you know, th i s  p rogram supports 

i nfants, todd le rs with de lays/d isab i l it ies and the i r  fam i l ies .  I cou l d  take up you r  whole morn ing  with 

stor ies of i ncreased i n dependence and  m it igated d i sab i l it ies, some that no longer  need any add it iona l  

supports .  Even for our young ch i l d ren that have the greatest of cha l lenges due to specia l  hea lth ca re 

issues a nd  d i s ab i l it ies, we can decrease costs across med ica l  care and  other  a reas of support .  Ea rly 

care and  educat ion supports a re a lso un ique ly  focused on fam i l i es' competence and confidence to he l p  

the i r  you ng ch i l d  l ea rn and  grow. Th is focus can a l so mean that fam i ly members can get support and  

"ear ly i ntervention" for the i r  own behaviora l  hea lth needs .  

I h ave been concerned about some of the d i scuss ions that have been happen ing a round  ear ly ca re and 

educatio n  supports d u ri ng  th i s  legis lative sess ion .  I go to education committee hear ings and I hear 

about ch i l d ren with extreme behaviora l hea lth  needs i n  our schools and teache rs fearing  for the i r  

safety, but  then I hear  d iscuss ions about i n creas ing opportun it ies for young  ch i l d ren, such as 

p reschoo l, and q u a l ity ch i l d  care improvements descri bed as a th reat to p rivate p roviders and  actua l ly, 

the  i ntegrity of the  fam i ly u n it and I shake my head .  I nvestments in a strong, coord in ated, qua l ity ea rly 

ca re a nd  educat ion system is  not a th reat to any one, it's the  smartest act ion ou r  state can take .  It' s 

about ra i s i ng  ou r  N D  fam i l ies up  and  supporting  them du ri ng  a t ime that's stressfu l ,  even for the most 

so l i d ly estab l ished fam i ly, not to ment ion if you ' re l iv ing i n  poverty or  dea l i ng  with a ch i l d  with specia l  

hea lth ca re  needs  o r  struggl i ng  to  stay sober. 

Along with th i s  test imony, I 've i nc l uded an info rmationa l  p iece that was sent to you p rior to the 66th 

Legis l at ive sess ion sta rt ing .  One the front s ide is i nformation about N D's  Part C Ea rly I ntervention 

system, b ut it 's the back s ide that I fee l  i s  the most important .  Designer  Genes has been a part of a 

loose ly formed advocacy group for N D  Part C, Friends  of N D  Part C Early I ntervent ion, and it has been 

2 



• 

• 

• 

1f3 
513 ;23/?J 
a;� It '7 

the wish of th i s  group that we spread the message of "a lways th i nking  about the ch i l d" . We want you f· 3 

to imagi ne  a n  a du lt who requ i res the support of pub l ic ly fu nded p rograms, such as behaviora l health 

a nd/or  correct ions a n d  ask the fo l lowing two questions :  

1 .  I s  th i s  adu lt a pa rent and if so, what supports a re we p rovid i ng  for h i s/her  ch i l d ren?  

2 . Cou l d  th i s  a d u lt h ave benefited from ea r ly supports when they were a ch i l d  - cou l d  we have 

changed the t rajectory for th is  adu lt? 

I 'm on ly ask i n g  for the i nsert ion of 4 words, but I be l ieve that these 4 words, wi l l  h e l p  the Ch i l d ren's 

Cab i net stay focused on  the return on i nvestment that comes from a qua l ity system of supports for our 

you ngest c it izens  and the i r  fam i l ies .  I am wi l l i n g  to answer any quest ions and  thank you for you r  t ime .  

Roxane  Rom a n ick, Executive D i rector 

701-391-7421 

i nfo@designe rgenesnd . com 
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I NVEST I N  A STRONG  START FOR C H I LDREN . 

High Return on Investment 

A common argument for supporting early childhood is that it  is a good " investment." Often, the 

term is used colloquially, meaning that early childhood is an area in which donors can make a 

positive difference, and that support is broadly beneficial for children. While the colloquial meaning 

of investment is certainly valid, when business people and economists talk about investment and 

return on investment in early childhood, they generally mean something more specific. This brief 

explores the notion of return on investment, and the rationale behind the economic and business 

case for spending on early childhood . 

What does it mean to " i nvest" i n  ea r ly ch i l d hood? 

In the strictly financial sense, an investment is an outlay of money from which one expects a 

return of some kind, in addition to the original amount allocated. The return on investment, or 

ROI, is a common performance measure used to evaluate and compare the efficiency of financial 

investments. Early childhood programs cost money, of course, but studies show that the benefits 

associated with such programs also come with monetary gains and savings. When the projected 

benefits exceed the projected costs, then these programs can be seen as "paying for themselves" and 

then some over time. In other words, the original investment generates a financial return. 

Who benefits from ea r ly ch i l d hood p rograms? 

We all do. The primary beneficiaries are children and their parents. For example, if a low-income 

parent is able to secure a place for her child in a high quality daycare program, that child is likely 

to benefit from exposure to a wider array of learning opportunities than he or she might have at 

home. Enrolling her child in daycare may also open the door for the parent to take on employment 

or further her education in order to improve her career prospects. Those individual benefits can be 

substantial, and life-changing. 

T H E  C E N T E R  F O R  H I G H  I M PA C T  P H I L A N T H R O P Y  
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Other beneficiaries from such high quality daycare programs may include state and local 

government, and more broadly, taxpayers and society at large. Because high quality early childhood 

programs promote healthy development, they can generate savings by obviating the need for more 

expensive interventions later in a child's life .  For example, studies show that participation in high

quality early care can help children avoid special education, grade repetition, early parenthood, and 

incarceration - all outcomes that imply large costs for government and for society. Furthermore, 

children (over the long term) and parents who participate in such programs are more likely to be 

employed; thus revenue from their taxes and enhanced buying power can positively contribute to 

the economy. 

How b ig a re the retu rns to ea r ly ch i l dhood prog rams? 

They can be large . For example, the National Forum on Early Childhood Policy and Programs 

has found that high quality early childhood programs can yield a $4 - $9 dollar return per $1 

invested. A 2009 study of Perry Preschool, a high-quality program for 3 -5 year olds developed 

in Michigan in the 1960s, estimated a return to society of between about $7 and $12 for each $1 

invested (see Figure 1 below) . '  It is important to note that different assumptions can shift estimates 

and that different studies often rely on different assumptions, limiting comparisons across studies 

and programs. That said, early childhood stands out as a particularly notable area for investment 

precisely because so many interventions appear to save money in the longer term . 

F ig u re 1 :  Pe rry Preschoo l  Prog ra m :  Retu rn per  $1 i nvested 

14  

12  

1 0  

8 

6 
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2 

0 

Low estimate 

Source:  Heckman  et a l l  2009 
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Do a l l ea r ly c h i l d hood progra m s  p rovid e  the s a m e  benefits 

and retu rn s? 

No, there is a range .  A landmark study of early childhood programs found that five out of seven 

programs for which they calculated costs and benefits had a positive cost-benefit ratio, but there 

was variance both in the benefits tracked and in returns among the five. 2 

There is also a school of thought that argues that investing earlier in a child 's life yields higher 

returns on investment. Nobel Prize-winning economist James Heckman has written extensively 

on investments and early childhood, arguing (based on his own analysis of a range of programs) 

that returns on unit dollar invested are at least theoretically higher earliest in a child's life (See 

Figure 2) . 3 

F ig u re 2 :  Retu rns  to a U n it Do l l a r  I nvested a re 
H i g h est i n  Ea r l i est Yea rs 
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C. ro 
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Prog rams targeted towards the ear l i est years 
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- Preschool  Programs 

0-3 4-5 Schoo l  

Source:  Heckman  and  La fonta ine  (2007) 

Post-Schoo l  

While earlier programs may generate the highest potential returns, donors that support children 

beyond age three nonetheless play an important role in sustaining and extending benefits, and 

there is good evidence that programs that target older age groups can also generate positive returns. 

H ow a re benefits or retu rns  ca l cu l ated? 

There are different ways to estimate the benefits associated with social programs (for more 

information, see papers from Melinda Tuan and Kilburn and Karoly, both linked in Additional 

Resources) .  Almost all rely on underlying program evaluation information that distinguishes 

the outcomes or results for participants in a program from outcomes typical of a similar group. 

Estimating the return on investment involves putting prices on actual or predicted outcomes, 
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in an attempt to link costs and benefits. In other words ,  these studies take often non-economic 

outcomes, and decide what they are "worth" in dollar terms .  That said, some things are hard to 

put a price on, and there is often disagreement on how best to "monetize" non-economic benefits. 

For example, what is the "value" of a child's love of reading (a benefit of some programs)? Other 

program outcomes may be easier to assign a price tag to. If a program reduces emergency room 

visits over a period of time by a certain percentage, for example, those cost savings can be fairly 

easily calculated .  

How shou l d I th i n k  about retu rn on i nvestment in choos i ng  p rog rams  
to  suppo rt? 

It can be helpful to compare potential programs based upon a common measure (e .g. , cost benefit 

analysis or similar) when applied consistently.4 Organizations working towards unified metrics 

across programs include the Robin Hood Foundation in New York, as well as the Washington 

State Institute for Public Policy. Because underlying program goals and evaluation information 

available are often so varied, however, such comparisons are sometimes inappropriate. Here are 

some things that donors should keep in mind: 

• Different programs often track different outcomes or benefits. One program may focus on 

improving children's health, for example, while another looks primarily at education outcomes . 

Considering returns alone does not guarantee that you are getting the specific outcomes you 

may be looking for. 

• When a program does not show a positive rate of return, it could be because: a) the program 

doesn't work: it doesn't generate the benefits it promises; 6) the program does indeed produce 

the benefits promised, but at a sufficiently high cost that the benefits do not outweigh the costs; 

or c) the underlying assumptions about either costs or benefits are faulty, or the evaluation 

data that might support a more accurate assessment of benefits are missing. The last point, (c) , 

could also be  the case for a program claiming a positive rate of return, so investors should look 

carefully at the assumptions made and the quality of the evaluation data. 

• Even the same program may have different returns based on the location or population 

targeted. For example, the returns on investment for the Nurse Family Partnership program 

are much higher for low-income, at-risk families than for the population generally (see Figure 

3) . Depending on what group you wish to serve, results from one study of a program may not 

be generalizable to a different context or group . 

T H E  C E N T E R  F O R  H I G H  I M PA C T  P H I L A N T H R O P Y 
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Fi g u re 3 :  M o n eta ry Ben efits to Soc iety of N u rse  Fa m i ly Pa rtne rsh i p  Prog ra m 

Lower-r isk Fa m i l ies 

- $7, 271 

$9,1 51 

H ighe r-r isk Fa m i l ies 

- $7,271 

0 1 0,000 

Sou rce:  2005 RAN D Corporat ion Study 

20,000 30,000 

• Increased partic ipant income 
(net of welfare loss) 

• Reduction  in ta ng ib le  cr ime l osses 

• Savings  to g overn ment 

• Cost 

40,000 50,000 

Keeping these caveats in mind, it is important for donors to consider the cost involved in different 

ways to tackle a problem, and looking at return on investment is one way of doing that .  The Center's 

use of a cost-per-impact analysis in the models we profile is meant to help donors get a sense of 

"bang for buck" while still distinguishing between different programs' impact. 

Add it ion a l  Resou rces 

Heckman Equation: Nobel Prize winning economist James Heckman has researched and written 

extensively on investments in early childhood. His website has a wealth of resources, both video 

and print, accessible to a general audience. 

Towards Standardization of Benefit-Cost Analysis of Early Childhood Interventions: In this paper, 

RAND analyst Lynn Karoly discusses in detail some of the difficulties inherent in comparing costs 

and benefits of early childhood programs, provides an updated analysis of the cost and benefit of 

a subset of programs, and makes recommendations for the field for increasing the standardization 

of approaches .  

The Economics of Early Childhood Policy: This paper from RAND outlines differing approaches 

to estimating economic returns, written for a more general audience of policy makers and others 

interested in early childhood. 

Early Childhood Interventions: Proven Results, Future Promise: This RAND study from 2005 

remains the most thorough review of impact and return on investment for 20 early childhood 

programs with good evaluation data . 

T H E  C E N T E R  F O R  H I G H  I M PA C T  P H I L A N T H R O P Y 

;tr:, 
6(); J:0 13 

�II / I '?  
P· <6 



• 

• 

• 

Measuring and/or Estimating Social Value Creation : This paper, prepared by Center for High 

Impact Philanthropy senior fellow Melinda Tuan for the Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation in 

2008, reviews eight approaches to integrating costs and benefits associated with social programs, 

including the Center's use of cost-per-impact analysis. 

TEDX talk by Professor Larry Schweinhart on returns to high quality preschool: Dr. Schweinhart, 

President of the High Scope Educational Research Foundation, leads the evaluation of Perry 

Preschool, one of the most thoroughly studied high quality preschool programs. 

The Business Case for Early Childhood Education: In this New York Times op-ed, John E.  Pepper, 

former CEO of Procter & Gamble, and James Zimmerman, former CEO of Macy's , write about 

early childhood education benefits from a business perspective . 

Michigan Early Childhood Investment Corporation: Business case for investment video: This 

video features interviews with business leaders about why they have chosen to support a public/ 

private collaboration to increase investments in early childhood in the state . 

Georgia Early Education Alliance for Ready Students (GEEARS) video: This short animated 

video makes a great overall case for investment in early childhood, including return on investment. 

Ready Nation: This is a national-level association of business leaders and others specifically 

concerned with early childhood and is a source for news and business perspectives on the issue . 

America's Promise Alliance: This is a national alliance of companies with a particular focus on 

lowering high school dropout rates .  Ready Nation is also a partner, in recognition of the link 

between effective early education and high school completion . 
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Consider This : 
Imagine an adult who requires the support of publicly 
funded programs, such as behavioral health, corrections , etc . 

• Is that adult a parent? 
Solution: Support is provided to their children if eligible 
so the children receive supports needed. Positive early 
experiences are essential prerequisites for later success 
in school , the workplace, and the community. 

This solution helps improve the trajectory of 

the children. 

• Could that adult have benefited from 
early supports when they were a child? 
Solution: ND Early Intervention services could have 
mitigated a behavioral health need or reduced an 

ACES score. ND Early Intervention could have prevented 
or reduced the severity of a developmental delay. 
Early Intervention could have improved environmental 
access and improved independence for the child and 
advocacy skills of their parent. Services to young 
children who have or are at risk for developmental 
delays have been shown to positively impact outcomes 
across developmental domains, including health, 
language and communication, cognitive development, 
and social/ emotional development. 

This solution may have improved the trajectory of 
the adult. 

ND Early Intervention and early childhood 
programs provide foundational support to children 
and adults that can result in benefits to education, 
child welfare , behavioral health (including mental 
health and addiction) , developmental disabilities ,  
and corrections systems . 

Early Intervention services 
can improve outcomes!  

For more information visit 
friendsnd partc@gmail . com 
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Part C of the Individuals with Disabilities Act (IDEA) 
makes it possible for North Dakota to meet the needs of 
infants and toddlers with delays and/or disabilities and their 
families . North Dakota Early Intervention is administered 
by the Division of Developmental Disabilities within the 
North Dakota Department of Human Services . 

What makes up ND Early Intervention? 

Administration - a fu l l -t ime  coo rd i n ato r 
works fo r Deve lopmenta l D isab i l it ies a nd  
manages t h e  Pa rt C prog ram .  

North Dakota Interagency Coordinating 
Council (NDICC) - a boa rd a ppoi nted by 
the governor  to provide advice a nd  ass ista nce 
to the Pa rt C p rog ra m .  

Service Coordination - t h e  No rth Dakota 
Department of Human  Services, Developmenta l 
D isa b i l i t ies Prog ra m Manages services fo r 
ch i l d ren  and  fam i l ies .  

Technical Assistance & Training -
The Pa rt C prog ra m offe rs tra i n i ng a l i g ned 
with the evidence-based p ractices, wh ich i s  
c r it ica l to provi d i ng  q u a l ity services. 

FACTS : 

Experienced Parents - a peer-to-peer  
resou rce made up of  pa rents, who have had  
ch i l d ren i n  ea r ly i nte rvent ion ,  h i red to  p rovide  
emotiona l  and i nformation supports to  fam i l ies. 

Right Track - a prog ra m that p rovides 
deve lopmenta l screen i ng a n d  g u ida nce to 
he lp ident ify c h i l d re n  who may be e l i g i b l e  fo r 
services. R i ght Track  p rovides 48% of refe rra l s  
to  Ea r ly I nte rvent io n  Services .  

Infant Development - Services provided 
d i rect ly to fam i l i es and c h i l d re n  in  the fa m i ly's 
home us ing  n atu ra l  l ea r n i ng  opportu n it ies 
l i n ked to da i ly ro ut i nes .  These services a re 
provided by Occu pati ona l  Thera py, Physica l 
Therapy, Speech a nd La nguage  Patho logy, 
Ea r ly Ch i l d hood Spec i a l  Educat ion ,  b i rth  
th rough  2 ,  N u rs i ng  o r  Socia l  Work. 

• ND  Ea rly I nte rvention is funded through  • Ch i l d re n  with d e l ays who rece ive ea rly 
supports such as  ea rly i ntervention services 
resu lt in a savings of $30K-$1 DOK 

a comb i nation  of sou rces  wh i c h  i n c l u d e  
the U .S .  D e p a rtment o f  Educati on ,  
Med i c a i d ,  and  state gene ra l  fu nds .  p e r  c h i l d  ( G l a scoe  a nd  Shap iro, 2004) .  

• 

$301{-$ l 001{ 
20 1 7  N D  Ea r ly I nterventi o n  se rv i ces  • Both R ight Trac k  and  ND  Ea rly I ntervention . 
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• were d e l ivered to 2,803 i nfa nts, tod d l e rs ,  se rvi ces  a re statewide, a c ross reservations, 
a n d  the i r  fa m i l i e s  s c hoo l  d i str i cts, a n d  l e g i s l at ive d i str i cts. 
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